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FROM THE DESK OF CHAIRMAN 

 

 
My Fellow Members, 

 
I am delighted to have the privilege of apprising you about 

RMC. I would like to begin with congratulating you all as 

your company completes 23 successful years in the 

Electrical Product Industry. I am pleased to share with you 

the 23rd Annual Report of your Company for the Financial 

Year 2016-17. The Financial year ended on March, 2017 

was another successful year, This year your company 

came up with an Initial Public Offer (IPO) and obtained 

great response from investor and issues was 

oversubscribed by 20 times. Your Company got listed on 

SME platform of BSE on 14th March, 2017.  

 

The aim is to recognize our accomplishments during the 

Financial Year 2016-17 and to share with you our outlook 

and plans for the future. I am gratified with the continued 

growth of market share in the arena of “Generation 

equipment” and “T&D equipment”. I am more excited 

about the pace and scale of execution that our Company is 

undertaking to fulfill our unwavering aim of creating long-

term shareholder value. In a state of flux in the economies 

across the world, we maintained capability to demonstrate 

a strong performance on the strength of our in-house 

innovation and engineering capabilities with constant cost 

discipline. We closed the financial year 2016-17 on strong 

note with revenue and profit almost in line with our 

estimates. I am happy to inform that during this Year, the 

company made net profit Rs. 153.15 Lakh and last year 

net profit was Rs. 21.91 Lakh. This Year turnover of our 

company is Rs.5589.68 Lakh and last year turnover was 

6074.76 Lakh; EBIDTA of your Company is Rs. 726.88 

Lakh during the year. 

India’s electrical equipment industry is highly diverse and 

manufactures a wide range of high and low technology 

products. The industry directly employs around half 

million persons and provides indirect employment to 

another one million people. The industry can be broadly 

classified into two sectors – generation equipment and 

T&D equipment. Other electrical equipment, including 

instrument transformers, surge arrestors, stamping and 

lamination, insulators, insulating material, industrial 

electronics, indicating instruments, winding wires, etc., 

contributed to `25,000 crore (US$ 5.2 billion). 

 

In the Financial year 2017-18 your company apart from 

current manufacturing operation, took an important step in 

building one more pillar of its growth strategy by 

commencing new project for manufacturing of 

environmental friendly “Imitation Marble and Wooden 

Surfaces for walls and floors with production capacity of 

more than 20lakh Sq. Ft. of sheets/ profile per anum” in 

the same factory premises situated at Chaksu Jaipur. 

 

We have strengthened our manufacturing capacity to cope 

with the changing market demand and upgrading the 

technology. With the experience of our Promoters & 

senior management we have been able to sustain and grow 

in the past. Our customer base includes many names from 

Indian private sector namely Larson & Toubro Limited, 

KEI Industries Limited, NCC Limited, IL&FS 

Engineering & Construction Co Ltd, BSES Ltd, IRCON 

Ltd, Drake & Scull Ltd, etc and state owned power 

utilities in the states of Rajasthan, Haryana, Uttar Pradesh, 

Madhya Pradesh, Punjab, Bihar, Karnataka, Gujarat, 

Uttaranchal and Assam. Our Company has also 

undertaken work under the Central funded schemes such 

as RGGVY and R-APDRP schemes as well as the State 

funded schemes such as Feeder Separation Schemes 

providing trouble free electricity to both urban and rural 

areas. 

 

In the year ahead, the business environment will continue 

to remain challenging and competitive intensity is likely to 

remain high. With our purpose driven products, passionate 

employees and your continued support, I am confident that 

we will continue to deliver growth that is consistent, 

competitive, profitable and responsible. I would like to 

thank you, all our shareholders, for your trust and your 

wholehearted support and look forward to meeting all of 

you at the annual general meeting. 

 

Thank you, 

 

Ashok Kumar Agarwal 

Chairman & Managing Director 
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 

 

Our Board of Directors & KMP 

 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Agarwal 

 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Agarwal, aged 61 years, has been on Board since inception of the Company and currently holding the 

position as Chairman cum Managing Director. He has an overall experience of around 38 years out of which 20 years in the 

field of electrical industry is one of the Promoters of our Company. He is instrumental in taking major policy decisions of the 

Company. He is playing vital role in formulating business strategies and effective implementation of the same. He is 

responsible for the expansion and overall management of the business of our Company. His leadership abilities have been 

instrumental in leading the core team of our Company. 

 

Mr. Ankit Agrawal 

 

Mr. Ankit Agrawal, aged 35 years is the Whole Time Director of our Company. He has 18 years of rich experience in the field 

of electrical industry He is entrusted with the responsibility to look after the marketing and production department of our 

Company. He has been instrumental in establishing the procurement & quality assurance standard for the Company. He is 

providing his learned guidance and mentoring the senior management of our Company to execute and implement future growth 

strategy.  

 

Mrs. Neha Agrawal 

 

Mrs. Neha Agrawal, aged 34 years is associated with the Company from 2016 as Director. She holds the degree of Bachelor of 

Business Administration from Eastern Institute for Integrated Learning in Management and have an overall experience of 3 

Years in the electrical Industry. She currently looks after the overall administration of the Company.  

 

Mr. Suresh Kumar Jain 

 

In 2016, Company brought Mr. Suresh Kumar Jain, aged 59 Years on Board as Independent Director. He is having 34 years of 

experience in the field of Taxation and other Professional Services.  

 

Mr. Devi Shankar Goyal 

 

In 2016, Company brought Mr. Devi Shankar Goyal, aged 70 years on Board as Independent Director. He is having 26 years of 

experience in the field of Industrial Vastu Consultancy.  

 

Mrs. Radhika Agarwal 

 

Mrs. Radhika Agarwal, aged 39 years is associated with the Company from 2016 as Independent Director having an 

experience of in the field of Electrical equipment industry.  

 

Ms. Priyanka Gattani 

 

Ms. Priyanka Gattani, aged 26 years is Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company. She is a qualified 

Company Secretary from Institute of Company Secretaries of India. She has experience of more than 2 year in the field of 

Secretarial Matters. She looks after the overall Corporate Governance and Secretarial matters of our Company. 

 

Mr. Shiv Charan Maheshwari 

 

Mr. Shiv Charan Maheshwari, aged 61 years is the Chief Financial Officer of our Company. He holds Bachelor Degree of 

Commerce, LLB, CAIIB, Certificate in Industrial Finance, Banking & Finance and Diploma in Management. He takes care of 

all accounts, banking, taxation and financial activities of our Company. He has 39 years of experience in his functional area 

and associated with us from 2016. He has been appointed as Chief Financial Officer of our Company in the year 2016.  
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

To,  

The Shareholders, 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Twenty Third Annual Report of the Company on the business and operations 

of the Company together with the Audited financial accounts for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2017.  

 

1. Financial Performance & Highlights 
(Rs. in Lakh) 

Particulars March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016 

 

Revenue From Operations (Gross) 5589.67 6,074.76 

Less: Excise Duty 517.75 531.20 

Revenue from operations (Net) 5071.92 5,543.56 

Other Income 165.25 41.78 

Total Revenue 5237.17 5,585.34 

Profit before Depreciation, Interest and Tax Expenses 726.88 710.64 

Less: Finance Cost 426.60 461.48 

Profit before Depreciation and Tax Expenses 300.28 249.16 

Less: Provision for Depreciation 152.59 133.87 

Net Profit before Tax 147.69 115.29 

Less: Deferred Tax -5.46 93.38 

Net Profit after Tax 153.15 21.91 

 

2. Brief description of the Company’s working during 

the year/State of Company’s affair 

 

The Company is engaged in the business of Manufacturing, 

LT/HT Distribution Boxes and Panels, Junction Boxes, 

Feeder Pillars and other Power Distribution and Circuit 

Protection Switchgears. There has been no change in the 

business of the Company during the financial year ended 

March 31, 2017. Your Company recorded a satisfactory 

performance despite challenging second half of the year.  The 

second half of the year was challenging for businesses across 

the country due to demonetisation which weighed on the 

growth for initial few weeks. During this period, your 

Company reached out to customers in an unprecedented 

manner to assure support and help them navigate during this 

period of uncertainty. In the Meter/Distribution Boxes 

segment, your Company achieved consistent, competitive, 

profitable and responsible growth along with significant 

margin improvement.  

 

Gross revenues decreased to Rs.5589.67 Lakh, against Rs. 

6,074.76 Lakh in the previous year due to less supply order 

placed by the customers in spite of having good order book.  

 

Profit before depreciation and taxation was Rs. 300.28 Lakh 

against Rs. 249.16 Lakh in the previous year and after 

providing for depreciation and taxation amounting Rs. 147.13 

Lakh against Rs. 227.25 Lakh in the previous year, the net 

profit of the company for the year under review has increased 

to Rs. 153.15 Lakh as against Rs. 21.91 Lakh in the previous 

year. The year under review was a moderate one for the 

company. Company has executed Turnkey Contracts in the 

F.Y. 2016-17 and this business contributed 7.55% in total 

gross turnover of company. 

 

3. Dividend  

 

To conserve the resources of the Company for its future 

growth, the Board of Directors of the Company have decided 

to plough back the profit into the business, therefore no 

divided is recommend for the financial year 2016-2017. 

 

4. Transfer to Reserves & Surplus 

 

Your Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to the 

Reserve and transferred profit of Rs. 153.15 Lakh from profit 

and loss account to Surplus. 

 

5. Share Capital & Unclaimed Shares 

 

During the year under review, your Company’s Authorised 

Share Capital has increased from Rs. 2,00,00,000 (Rupee 

Two Crore) to 6,50,00,000 (Rupees Six Crore and Fifty 

Lakh), in the duly convened EGM held on 08.06.2016, 

comprising 65,00,000 Equity Shares of 10/- each. Your 

Company has allotted 32,43,150 fully paid-up Bonus Shares 

of face value of Rs. 10/- each, in June, 2016 to the 

Shareholders of the Company in proportion of 3:1 and 

consequently the paid-up Share Capital got increased from 

1,08,10,500 to 4,32,42,000.  Further your Company’s has 

allotted 15,36,000 shares (7,68,000 by way of Offer for sale + 
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7,68,000 by way of Fresh Issue) of face value of Rs. 10/- 

each at a issue price of Rs. 27 (including Rs. 17 as share 

premium) to the public in March, 2017 and consequently the 

paid-up share capital increased from 4,32,42,000 to 

5,09,22,000. 

During the year under review, the Company has not issued 

shares with differential voting rights nor has granted any 

stock options or sweat equity. As on March 31, 2017, none of 

the directors of the Company hold instruments convertible 

into Equity Shares of the Company. 

6. Credit Rating 

 

During the year, CARE has upgraded the long-term Bank 

Facility rating from CARE BB- to CARE BB; and 

reaffirmed short-term Bank Facility rating at CARE A4 for 

RMC Switchgear Limited. 

 

7. Director’s & Key Managerial Personnel 

 

In accordance with the provisions of section 149, 152 & 

Article 105 to 110 of Article of Association of the 

Company and other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013, one third of the of Directors are 

liable to retire by rotation, shall retire every year and, if 

eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at every 

AGM. Consequently Mrs. Neha Agrawal, Directors of the 

Company is liable to retire by rotation in the forthcoming 

Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers herself 

for reappointment. The Board recommends their re-

appointment for the consideration of Members of the 

Company at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The 

details of Directors being recommended for reappointment 

as required under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are contained 

in the accompanying Notice convening the ensuing Annual 

General Meeting of the Company. Appropriate 

Resolution(s) seeking your approval to the appointment/ 

re-appointment of Directors are also included in the Notice. 

During the year under review, there is change in the Board 

of Directors & KMP of the Company as follow: 

1. The Directors namely Mr. Chandra Prakash Agarwal, 

Mrs. Santosh Agrawal, Mr. Vitthal Das Agrawal has 

resigned, due to preoccupation, from the company w.e.f. 

28.06.2016 and Neha Agrawal has been appointed as 

Additional Non Executive Director w.e.f 28.06.2016,  

2. Key Managerial Personnel have been appointed, Mr. 

Shiv Charan Maheshwari as a Chief Financial Officer 

and Ms. Priyanka Gattani as a Company Secretary w.e.f.  

July 1, 2016  

3. Mr. Ashok Kumar Agarwal, Managing Director of the 

company, in addition to being the Managing Director 

appointed as the Chairman of the Board, to hold office 

till his continuance on the Board as a Director at duly 

convened EGM on July 16, 2016 

4. Mr. Devi Shankar Goyal, Mr. Suresh Kumar Jain and 

Mrs. Radhika Agarwal have been appointed as 

Additional Independent Non Executive Director w.e.f. 

August 1, 2016 

5. Mrs. Neha Agrawal, appointed as Executive Director, 

Mr. Devi Shankar Goyal, Mr. Suresh Kumar Jain and 

Mrs. Radhika Agarwal have been appointed as 

Independent Directors, w.e.f.  September 8, 2016 

 

The following are the Key Managerial Personnel of the 

Company for the Financial Year 2016-17: 

 

 Sl. 

No. Name of Person  Designation 

 1 

Mr. Ashok Kumar 

Agarwal 

Chairman & Managing 

Director 

 2 Mr. Ankit Agrawal Whole Time Director 

3 Mrs. Neha Agrawal Executive Director 

4 

Mr. Shiv Charan 

Maheshwari Chief Financial Officer 

5 Ms. Priyanka Gattani Company Secretary 

 

8. Number of Meetings of the Board 

 

The Board of the Company has met Twenty Three times 

and the details of the number of Meetings of the Board 

held during the financial year 2016-17 forms part of the 

Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap 

between the Meetings was within the period prescribed 

under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Pursuant to the requirements of Schedule IV to the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a 

separate Meeting of the Independent Directors of the 

Company was also held on 31st March, 2017, without the 

presence of non-independent directors and members of the 

management, to review the performance of non 

independent directors and the Board as a whole, the 

performance of the Chairperson of the company and also to 

assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of 

information between the company management and the 

Board. 

 

9. Committees of the Board 

 

The Board of Directors has the following committees: 

1. Audit Committee 

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

3. Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee 

The details of the Committees along with their composition, 

number of meetings and attendance at the Meetings are 

provided in the Corporate Governance Report. 

 

10. Formal Annual Evaluation 

 

Meeting the requirements of the statute and considering 

Board Performance Evaluation as an important step for a 

Board to transit to a higher level of performance, the 
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down a 

comprehensive framework for carrying out the evaluations 

prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013 and the Regulation 

17(10) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015  

 

The framework was developed to give all Board members 

an opportunity to evaluate and discuss the Board’s 

performance openly from multiple perspectives and 

enhance governance practices within the Board. The 

framework describes the evaluation coverage and the 

process thereof.  

 

Performance Evaluation of the Board and Committees  
 

In respect of the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2017, 

the Board conducted its self-evaluation, that of its 

Committees and all of its individual Members. Some of the 

parameters which were taken into account while 

conducting Board evaluation were: Leadership initiative, 

Initiative in terms of new ideas and planning for the 

Company, Professional skills, problem solving, and 

decision-making, Compliance with policies of the 

Company, ethics, code of conduct, etc. The evaluation of 

each of the Board Committees were done on parameters 

such as Committee meetings are conducted in a manner 

that encourages open communication, meaningful 

participation and timely resolution of issues etc.  

 

Performance Evaluation of Non-Independent Directors 

 

The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-

Independent Directors were carried out by the Independent 

Directors, considering aspects such as Attendance and 

participations in the Meetings, Raising of concerns to the 

Board, Safeguard of confidential information, Rendering 

independent, unbiased opinion and resolution of issues at 

meetings, Initiative in terms of new ideas and planning for the 

Company, Safeguarding interest of whistle-blowers under 

vigil mechanism etc.  

 

Evaluation Outcome 

 

It was assessed that the Board as a whole together with 

each of its Committees was working effectively in 

performance of its key functions- effective in decision 

making, effective in developing a corporate governance 

structure that allows and encourages the Board to fulfill its 

responsibilities, effective for identifying material risks and 

reporting material violations of policies and law etc. 

 

The Board is kept well informed at all times through 

regular communication and meets once per quarter and 

more often during times of rapid growth or if Company 

needs merit additional oversight and guidance. 

Comprehensive agendas are sent to all the Board Members 

well in advance to help them prepare and keep the 

Meetings productive.  The performance of the Chairman 

was evaluated satisfactory in the effective and efficient 

discharge of his role and responsibilities for the day to day 

management of the business, in line with the strategy and 

long term objectives. 

 

The Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors 

provided entrepreneurial leadership of the Company within 

a framework of prudent and effective controls, with a 

balanced focus on policy formulation and development of 

operational procedures. It was acknowledged that the 

management afforded sufficient insight to the Board in 

keeping it up-to-date with key business developments 

which was essential for each of the individual Directors to 

maintain and enhance their effectiveness. The policy on 

Board Performance Evaluation is appended in Annexure- 

A to the Directors Report. 

 

11. Familiarisation Program for Directors 

 

The company had organized orientation program for newly 

appointed Independent Directors in the Board. The details 

are provided in the corporate governance report 

 

12. Declaration by an Independent Director(s) and re- 

appointment, if any 

 

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they 

meet the criteria of independence as provided in sub-

section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

Regulation 16(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

13. Finance & Accounts 

 

Your Company prepares its Financial Statements in 

accordance with the Accounting Standards prescribed 

under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

the relevant rules issued there under and other accounting 

principles generally accepted in India. The estimates and 

judgments relating to the Financial Statements are made 

on a prudent basis, so as to reflect in a true and fair 

manner. The form and substance of transactions 

reasonably present the Company’s state of affairs, profits 

and cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2017. Bank, 

Cash and cash equivalents as at March 31, 2017 was Rs. 

310.99 lakh. The Company continues to focus on judicious 

management of its working capital, Receivables, inventories 

and other working capital parameters were kept under strict 

check through continuous monitoring. 

 

14. Subsidiary Companies/Joint Venture/ Associates 

Company 

 

The Company does not have any Subsidiary/Joint 

Venture/Associates Company as on 31.03.2017 

 

15.  Auditor 

 

(A) Statutory Auditor 

M/s. SARASWAT & COMPANY, Chartered Accountants, 

(FRN- 004846C) were appointed by the shareholders at the 

21st Annual General Meeting to hold office until the 
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conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company 

to be held in the Year 2020 subject to ratification by 

shareholders at each Annual General Meeting. The 

Company has obtained from the Auditors, a certificate as 

required under Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 to 

the effect that they are eligible to continue as Statutory 

Auditor of the Company.  

 

As required by the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 

their appointment should be ratified by members each year 

at the AGM. M/s. SARASWAT & COMPANY has 

confirmed that ratification of their appointment, if made at 

the ensuing AGM, shall be in accordance with the 

conditions specified in the Act. Accordingly, requisite 

resolution forms part of the Notice convening the Annual 

General Meeting.  

 

(B) Secretarial Auditor 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the 

Company has appointed Deepika Jain & Associates, a firm 

of Company Secretaries in Practice (CP No. 16994) to 

undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the 

F.Y. 2016-17. As required under section 204 (1) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 The Secretarial Audit Report 

submitted by them in the prescribed form MR-3 is enclosed 

as Annexure-B and forms part of this report. The report is 

self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments.  

 

(C) Cost Auditors 

As per the requirement of the Central Government and 

pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, read 

with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 as 

amended from time to time, your company hereby 

confirms that your company need not required to appoint 

cost auditor for the financial year 2016-17. Further 

pursuant to provision of section 148(1) of the Companies 

Act, 2013, maintenance of cost record have been specified 

by Central Government and such account and record have 

been so made and maintained by the Company. 

 

(D) Internal Auditor: 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 and any other 

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

rules made there under, Miss Ekta Gupta, Chartered 

Accountant (Membership No.430348) has been appointed 

as an Internal Auditor of the Company w.e.f. 17.04.2017 

 

16. Management explanation on Emphasis of matter 

mentioned in the Audited Accounts of the company: 
 

The Auditor has given Emphasis of Matter in its Audit 

Report and the Management’s explanation for the same is 

given under Note No. 1(vi) (b) & 1(xiv) of notes on 

Financial Statements as under: 

 

Note 1(vi) (b):  Deferred Tax has been provided on the 

DTL (net of DTA) at the prevailing Income Tax Rates as 

prescribed under Income Tax Act, 1961. However, the tax 

rate being used is as prescribed u/s 115JB of the Income 

Tax Act, 1961 (in place of regular rate i.e. 30%) in view of 

the availability of unabsorbed depreciation and MAT 

Credit for adjustment against future profits. Company was 

using regular rate of tax till the last financial year and had 

such rate been used for current FY also, the profit would 

had been lower by Rs. 45,26,876/- and Deferred Tax 

Liability would had been higher by the same amount. 

 

Note 1(xiv): There was an incident of fire resulting in the 

partial / complete loss of a few items of Building, Plant & 

Machinery and Stock under process. Company has lodged 

a claim of Rs. 2.50 Crore against the estimated loss and the 

claim is under process as on 31/03/2017. Ascertainment of 

Loss/Gain on the claim is not possible as on 31/03/2017 

and therefore the same would be accounted for as and 

when settled. However, company has deleted written down 

value of Building and Plant & Machinery to the extent of 

Rs. 66.26 Lacs and debited to the Insurance Company, 

pending determination of claim amount. 

 

17. Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy 

 

In pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of 

the Companies Act, 2013, The Company has a vigil 

mechanism named Whistle Blower Policy to deal with 

instance of fraud and mismanagement, if any. In staying 

true to our values of Strength, Performance and Passion 

and in line with our vision of being one of the most 

respected companies in India, the Company is committed 

to the high standards of Corporate Governance and 

stakeholder responsibility. The Company has a Whistle 

Blower Policy to deal with instances of fraud and 

mismanagement, if any. The Whistle Blower Policy 

ensures that strict confidentiality is maintained whilst 

dealing with concerns and also that no discrimination will 

be meted out to any person for a genuinely raised concern. 

The Vigil Mechanism Policy has been uploaded on the 

website of the Company at www.rmcindia.in. 

 

18. Risk Management 

 

In today’s economic environment, Risk Management is a 

very important part of business. The main aim of risk 

management is to identify, monitor and take precautionary 

measures in respect of the events that may pose risks for 

the business. The risk management framework is reviewed 

periodically by the Board and the Audit Committee. 

Pursuant to section 134 (3) (n) of the Companies Act, 2013 

& Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, the company 

should have developed and implemented Risk management 

policy for the Company including identification therein of 

elements of risk. Your Company has identified the 

following risks: 

 

(A) Commodity Price Risk 

Risk of price fluctuation on basic raw materials as well as 

finished goods used in the process of manufacturing. Your 

Company commands excellent business relationship with 
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both suppliers and buyers. In case of major fluctuation either 

upwards or downwards, the matter will be mutually discussed 

and compensated both ways. Also by focusing on new value 

added products helps in lowering the impact of price 

fluctuation in finished goods. 

 

(B) Interest Rate Risk 

Any increase in interest rate can affect the finance cost. Your 

Company’s dependency on interest bearing debt is reasonably 

low therefore risk on account of any unforeseen hike in 

interest rate is very nominal. 

 

(C) Human Resource Risk 

Your Company’s ability to deliver value is dependent on its 

ability to attract, retain and nurture talent. Attrition and non 

availability of the required talent resource can affect the 

overall performance of the Company. By continuously 

benchmarking of the best HR practices across the industry 

and carrying out necessary improvements to attract and retain 

the best talent. By putting in place production incentives on 

time bound basis and evaluating the performance at each 

stage of work. Also recruitment is across almost all states of 

India which helps to mitigate this risk and we do not 

anticipate any major issue for the coming years. 

 

(D) Competition Risk 

Your Company is exposed to competition risk particularly 

from China. The increase in competition can create pressure 

on margins, market share etc. However, by continuous efforts 

to enhance the brand image of the Company by focusing on, 

quality, cost, timely delivery, best customer service and by 

introducing new product range commensurate with demands, 

your Company plans to mitigate the risks so involved. 

 

(E) Compliance Risk 

Any default can attract penal provisions. Your Company 

regularly monitors and reviews the changes in regulatory 

framework through various legal compliance management 

tools to avoid any such compliance related risk. 

 

(F) Industrial Safety, Employee Health and Safety 

Risk 

The Electrical industry is labour intensive and is exposed to 

accidents, health and injury risk due to machinery 

breakdown, etc. By development and implementation of 

critical safety standards across the various departments of the 

factory, establishing training need identification at each level 

of employee. 

 

19. Extract of Annual Return 

 

As required pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 

2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014, extract of Annual Return in 

Form MGT-9, is included in this report as Annexure-C and 

forms an integral part of this report. 

 

20. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting 

the financial position of the company which have 

occurred between the end of the financial year of the 

company to which the financial statements relate and 

the date of the report 

 

During the current Financial year 2017-18 your company 

apart from current manufacturing operation, took an 

important step in building one more pillar of its growth 

strategy by commencing new project for manufacturing of 

environmental friendly “Imitation Marble and Wooden 

Surfaces for walls and floors with production capacity of 

more than 20lakh Sq. Ft. of sheets/ profile per anum” in the 

same factory premises situated at Chaksu Jaipur. 

 

21. Details of significant and material orders passed by 

the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the 

going concern status and company’s operations in 

future 

 

There are no significant and material order passed by the 

Regulators/ court that would impact the going concern status 

of the company and its future operations. 

 

22. Deposits 

 

Your Company has not accepted any deposits within the 

meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 

 

23. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments 

 

Details of Loan, Guarantees and investments covered under 

the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are 

given in the notes to Financial Statements. 

 

24. Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with 

Related Parties 

 

All transactions entered with the Related Parties during the 

financial year were in the ordinary course of business and on 

Arm’s Length Basis and do not attract the provisions of 

section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there 

under. Disclosure in form AOC- 2 in terms of section 134 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and its rules in the Annexure-D to 

the directors report.  

 

Related party transactions have been disclosed under the 

Note No. 24 of significant accounting policies and notes 

forming part of the financial statements in accordance with 

“Accounting Standard 18”. None of the transactions with 

related parties were in conflict with the interest of the 

Company. All the transactions are in the normal course of 

business and have no potential conflict with the interest of 

the Company at large and are carried out on an arm’s 

length basis or fair value. 

 

25. Listing with Stock Exchanges 

 

Your Company’s shares are listed on the Bombay Stock 

Exchange – SME Platform (BSE). The Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (SEBI), on September 2, 2015 

issued SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
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Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The said regulations were 

effective on December 01, 2015. Accordingly, all listed 

entities were required to enter into the listing agreement 

within six months from the effective date. Your Company 

entered into Listing Agreement with BSE Limited within the 

stipulated time period given. Your company came up with an 

IPO (OFS + Fresh Issue) and from approval of draft 

prospectus to Listing of company event took place in 

following manner: 

 

1. Draft Prospectus has been approved by Board of 

Director in their Board Meeting held on 14.09.2016. 

2. BSE In principle approvals has been received on 

04.11.2016 and after that final prospectus have been 

filed with ROC, BSE, SEBI and other concerned 

authorities on 20.02.2017. 

3. Approval of ROC have been received on 21.02.2017 

and after that our Public Issue & OFS was open from 

28.02.2017 to 03.03.2017 and issue was 19.47 times 

oversubscribed and allotment of the IPO & OFS was 

made to successful applicants on 09.03.2017. 

4. Your company got listed on BSE SME on 14.03.2017. 

 

26. Corporate Governance  

 

As per Regulation 34(3) read with schedule V of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, a separate section on corporate 

governance practices followed by the Company, together 

with a certificate from the Company’s Auditors confirming 

compliance forms an integral part of this report. (The 

Members hereby noted that according to the SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015 the company, being a SME Listed 

Company of BSE Ltd, is exempted from the compliance of 

corporate governance requirements as provided under 

regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation 

(2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V.)  

 

Further, the Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

and CEO / CFO Certificate as prescribed under SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

are also presented in separate sections forming part of the 

Annual Report. 

 

27. Environment and Safety 

 

Your Company is driven by principles of sustainability 

incorporating environment, employees and society aspects in 

all our activities. We are focused on employee well-being, 

developing safe and efficient products, minimizing 

environmental impact of our operations and products and 

minimizing the impact of our operations on society.  Your 

Company is conscious of the importance of environmentally 

clean and safe operations and ensure of all concerned, 

compliances, environmental regulations and preservation of 

natural resources. RMC Switchgears Limited recognizes 

quality and productivity as a pre-requisite for its operations 

and has implemented ISO 9001:2015. Continuous efforts to 

preserve the environment are pursued. 

 

Employees’ well-being and safety is of paramount 

importance to us. Creating a safe and healthy work 

environment is the most material issue in our operations. The 

focus is to continuously improve our health and safety 

performance. Our operations are comparatively safe and do 

not use significant amount of hazardous materials. All our 

employees are provided with relevant personal protective 

equipment according to the nature of work handled. They are 

also imparted relevant training on safety and handling of 

hazardous materials. 

 

28. Corporate Social Responsibility Initiatives 

 

As per Provisions of Section 135 of the Company Act 2013, 

and rules made there under, the CSR is not applicable on 

your company for the Financial Year 2016-2017. 

 

29. Directors Responsibility Statement 

 

To the best of knowledge and belief and according to the 

information and to the information and explanation obtained 

by them, your directors make the following statement in 

terms of section 134(3) (c) 

 

a) In the preparation of Annual Accounts of the Company, 

the applicable Accounting Standards have been 

followed along with proper explanation relating to 

material departures from the same, if there any. 

b) The Directors have selected such Accounting Policies 

and applied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a 

true & fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at 

the end of the financial year ended March 31, 2017 and 

of the Profit of the Company for the year ended on that 

date. 

c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for 

the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for 

preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularity. 

d) The Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts of the 

Company on a going concern basis. 

e) The Director has laid down internal financial control to 

be followed by the company and such internal financial 

control are adequate and were operating effectively; and 

f) The Director has devised proper system to ensure 

compliance with the provision of all applicable law and 

that such system operating effectively 

 

30. Transfer of Amounts to Investor Education and 

Protection Fund  

 

Your Company did not have any funds lying unpaid or 

unclaimed for a period of seven years. Therefore, there were 

no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor 

Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). 

 

31. Management Discussion & Analysis Report  
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The Management Discussion and Analysis Report as required 

under regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 is presented in the separate section 

forming part of this Annual Report. 

 

32. Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and 

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

 

As per section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the 

information on conservation of energy, technology absorption 

and foreign exchange earnings and outgo is annexed in 

Annexure-E an integral part of this report. 

 

33. Business Responsibility Report 

 

The Business Responsibility Reporting as required under 

Regulation 34(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable 

to your company for the financial year 2016-17.  

 

34. Internal Control Systems And Their Adequacy 

 

The Company has adequate internal control system, 

commensurate with the size of its operations. Adequate 

records and documents are maintained as required by laws. 

The Audit Committee reviews adequacy and effectiveness of 

the Company’s internal control environment and monitors the 

implementation of audit recommendations. The Audit 

Committee gives valuable suggestions from time to time for 

improvement of the company’s business processes, systems 

and internal controls. All efforts are being made to make the 

internal control systems more effective 

 

35. Nomination And Remuneration Policy of Directors, 

Key Managerial Personnel and Other Employees 

 

In adherence of section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, 

the Board of Directors of the have approved a policy on 

directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria 

for determining qualifications, positive attributes, 

independence of a director and other matters provided u/s 

178(3), based on the recommendations of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee. The broad parameters covered 

under the Policy are – Objective, Role of Committee, 

Appointment and removal of directors/KMP/ Senior 

Management, Terms & tenure, Evaluation, Policy For 

Remuneration To Directors/ KMP/ Senior Management 

Personnel etc. 

 

The Company’s Policy relating to appointment of Directors, 

payment of Managerial remuneration, Directors’ 

qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors 

and other related matters as provided under Section 178(3) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 is furnished in Annexure-F and 

forms part of this Report. 

 

36. Human Resource Management, Health And Safety 

 

At RMC, we consider our employees as the most valuable 

resource and ensure strategic alignment of Human Resource 

practices to business priorities and objectives. Our constant 

endeavour is to invest in people and people processes to 

improve human capital for the organization and service 

delivery to our customers. Attracting, developing and 

retaining the right talent will continue to be a key strategic 

imperative and the organization continues its undivided 

attention towards that. We would like to take this opportunity 

to express appreciation for the hard work and commitment of 

the employees of the Company and look forward to their 

continued contribution. 

 

RMC strives to provide a conducive and competitive work 

environment to help the employees excel and create new 

benchmarks of productivity, efficiency and customer delight. 

At RMC, the Human Resource agenda continues to remain 

focused on reinforcing the key thrust areas i.e. being the 

employer of choice, building an inclusive culture and a strong 

talent pipeline and building capabilities in the organization. 

To maintain its competitive edge in a highly dynamic 

industry, we recognize the importance of having a work force 

which is consumer-focused, performance-driven and future-

capable. In keeping with this, a number of policies and 

initiatives have been drawn up like regular employee 

engagement surveys, focusing on objective performance 

management system with key result areas and performance 

indicators. These initiatives ensure a healthy balance between 

business needs and individual aspirations. 

 

At RMC, we ensure that there is full adherence to the code of 

ethics and fair business practices. RMC provide equal 

opportunity in all aspects of employment, including 

recruitment, training, work conditions, career progression, 

etc. that reconfirms our commitment that equal employment 

opportunity is a component of our growth and 

competitiveness. Further, RMC is committed to maintaining a 

workplace where each employee’s privacy and personal 

dignity is respected and protected from offensive or 

threatening behaviour including violence. The Company 

believes in empowering its employees through greater 

knowledge, team spirit and developing greater sense of 

responsibility.  

 

The company has a policy on prohibition, prevention and 

Redressal of Sexual Harassment of women at workplace and 

matters connected there with or incidental there to covering 

all the aspects as contained under “The Sexual Harassment of 

women at workplace (Prohibition, Prevention and Redressal) 

Act, 2013”. During the year, no complaint was lodged. 

 

37. Particulars of Employees 

 

In terms of provisions of section 197(12) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014 no employees drawing remuneration in excess of 

the limits set out in the said rules. Further, the disclosures 

pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under 

section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 
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5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed in Annexure-

G an integral part of this report. 

 

38. Dematerialisation of Shares 

 

The shares of your Company are being traded in electronic 

form and the Company has established connectivity with both 

the depositories i.e. National Securities Depository Limited 

(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited 

(CDSL). In view of the numerous advantages offered by the 

Depository system, Members are requested to avail the 

facility of dematerialization of shares with either of the 

Depositories as aforesaid. As on March 31, 2017, 99.73% of 

the share capital stands dematerialized. 

 

39. Internal Financial Control 

 

The report on Internal Financial Control form part of 

Independent Audit report, Annexure ‘B’ 

 

40. Code of Conduct 

 

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct 

which is applicable to the Members of the Board and all 

employees in the course of day to day business operations of 

the company. The Company believes in “Zero Tolerance” 

against bribery, corruption and unethical dealings / behaviors 

of any form and the Board has laid down the directives to 

counter such acts. The Code has been posted on the 

Company’s website www.rmcindia.in. 

 

The Code lays down the standard procedure of business 

conduct which is expected to be followed by the Directors 

and the designated employees in their business dealings and 

in particular on matters relating to integrity in the work place, 

in business practices and in dealing with stakeholders. The 

Code gives guidance through examples on the expected 

behavior from an employee in a given situation and the 

reporting structure. 

 

All the Board Members and the Senior Management 

personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code. All 

Management Staff were given appropriate training in this 

regard. 

 

Declaration by Chairman & Managing Director regarding 

compliance by board members and senior management 

personnel with the company’s code of conduct is given in 

Annexure “H” 

 

41. Prevention Of Insider Trading 

 

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention 

of Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading in 

securities by the Directors and designated employees of the 

Company. The Code requires pre-clearance for dealing in the 

Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of 

Company shares by the Directors and the designated 

employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive 

information in relation to the Company and during the period 

when the Trading Window is closed. The Board is 

responsible for implementation of the Code. All Board 

Directors and the designated employees have confirmed 

compliance with the Code. 

 

42. Payment of Listing Fee 

 

Your company has paid Annual listing fee of BSE for the 

F.Y. 2017-18 

  

43. Cautionary Statement 

 

Statements in this report, describing the Company’s 

objectives, expectations and/or anticipations may be forward 

looking within the meaning of applicable Securities Law and 

Other laws & regulations. Actual results may differ 

materially from those stated in the statement. Important 

factors that could influence the Company’s operations 

include global and domestic supply and demand conditions 

affecting selling prices of finished goods, availability of 

inputs and their prices, changes in the Government policies, 

regulations, tax laws, economic developments within the 

country and outside and other factors such as litigation and 

industrial relations. The Company assumes no responsibility 

in respect of the forward-looking statements, which may 

undergo changes in future on the basis of subsequent 

developments, information or events. 
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ANNEXURE “A “TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

Board’s Performance Evaluation Policy 

 

Introduction 

The Company conducts its operations under the directions of 

Board of Directors within the framework laid down by 

various statutes, more particularly by the Companies Act, 

2013, the Articles of Association, SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 

2015, Listing Agreement with stock exchanges and Code of 

Conduct and policies formulated by the Company for its 

internal execution.  The Company’s Board of Directors is 

dedicated to act in good faith; exercise their judgment on an 

informed basis, in the best interest of the company and its 

stakeholders. Accordingly, the present policy for Board’s 

performance evaluation is being put into place in accordance 

with the requirements of section 178 of the Companies Act, 

2013 which provides for the a policy to be formulated and 

recommended to the Board, setting the criteria, based on 

which the performance of each and every director including 

the performance of the Board as a whole shall be assessed by 

the Board of Directors of the Company. Such an evaluation 

procedure will provide a fine system of checks and balances 

on the performance of the directors and will ensure that they 

exercise their powers in a rational manner. 

The Act, under clause VIII of Schedule IV, casts an 

obligation on part of the Board of Directors for evaluating the 

performance of independent directors. All the directors on the 

board of a company, except the independent director whose 

performance is being evaluated, will assess the performance 

of the independent director. Accordingly, a report of board’s  

performance evaluation of each independent director of the 

company would be prepared, which would determine whether 

to extend or continue the term of appointment of the 

concerned independent director or not. 

With an aim to maintain an energized, proactive and effective 

Board, the Board is committed to a continuing process of 

recommending and laying down the criteria to evaluate the 

performance of the entire Board of the Company.  

As one of the most important functions of the Board of 

Directors is to oversee the functioning of Company’s top 

management, this Board Performance Evaluation process 

aims to ensure individual director (“Directors”) and the 

Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”) as a whole 

work efficiently and effectively in achieving their 

functions. This policy aims at establishing a procedure for 

conducting periodical evaluation of its own performance and 

of its committees and individual directors. Hence it is 

important that every individual Board Member effectively 

contributes in the Board deliberations. 

 

Effectiveness of the Board 

The overall effectiveness of the Board shall be measured on 

the basis of the ratings obtained by each Director and 

accordingly the Board shall decide the Appointments, Re-

appointments and Removal of the non-performing Directors 

of the Company. For this reason, based on the fore stated 

criteria of evaluation the remuneration of the Directors and 

Key Managerial Personnel shall be determined and reviewed 

from time to time.  

 

Responsibility of Board/ Independent Director 

 

It shall be the duty of the Board, who shall be supported by 

the Management to organize the evaluation process and 

accordingly conclude the steps required to be taken. The 

evaluation process will be used constructively as a system to 

improve the directors’ and committees’ effectiveness, to 

maximize their strength and to tackle their shortcomings.  

 

The Board of Directors shall undertake the following 

activities on an annual basis: 
I. Review the various strategies of the Company and 

accordingly set the performance objectives for 

directors, in consistency with varying nature and 

requirements of Company’s business. 

II. The Board as a whole shall discuss and analyze its 

own performance during the year together with 

suggestions for improvement thereon, pursuant to 

the performance objectives. 

In conformity with the requirement of the Act, the 

performance evaluation of all the directors shall be done by 

the entire Board of Directors, excluding the director being 

evaluated. 

Independent Directors are duty bound to evaluate the 

performance of non - independent directors and board as a 

whole. The independent directors of the Company shall hold 

at least one meeting in a year to review the performance of 

the non- independent directors, performance of chairperson 

of the Company and board as a whole, taking into account the 

views of executive directors and non-executive directors. 

 

Evaluation Factors  

The Board of Directors shall pay regards to the following 

parameters for the purpose of evaluating the performance of a 

particular director: 

In respect of each of the evaluation factors, various aspects 

have been provided to assist with the evaluation process in 

respect of performance of Board itself, and of its committees 

and individual directors as, such evaluation factors may vary 

in accordance with their respective functions and duties.  

 

Evaluation of Independent Director shall be carried on by the 

entire Board in the same way as it is done for the Executive 

Directors of the Company except the Director getting 

evaluated. 

Appraisal of each Director of the Company shall be based on 

the criteria as mentioned herein below. 

Rating Scale 

Scale Performance Rating Scale 

Exceptionally good  5 

Good 4 

Satisfactory 3 

Needs improvement 2 

Unacceptable 1 
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The Company has chosen to adopt the following Board 

Performance Evaluation Process: 

 

Independent Directors  

Some of the specific issues and questions that should be 

considered in a performance evaluation of Independent 

Director, in which the concerned director being evaluated 

shall not be included, are set out below:  

Name of Director being assessed: __________________ 

 

S. 

No. 

Assessment Criteria Rating Remarks/ 

Commen

ts 

1.  Attendance and 

participations in the 

Meetings 

  

2.  Raising of concerns to 

the Board 

  

3.  Safeguard of 

confidential 

information 

  

4.  Rendering 

independent, unbiased 

opinion and resolution 

of issues at meetings 

  

5.  Initiative in terms of 

new ideas and 

planning for the 

Company 

  

6.  Safeguarding interest 

of whistle-blowers 

under vigil mechanism 

 

  

7.  Timely inputs on the 

minutes of the 

meetings of the Board 

and Committee’s, if 

any 

  

Non-Independent Directors, Executive Directors non – 

Independent Directors / Executive Directors 

Some of the specific issues and questions that should be 

considered in a performance evaluation of Chairperson/Non-

Independent Director / Executive Director by Independent 

Directors, in which the concerned director being evaluated 

shall not be included, are set out below:  

Name of Director being assessed:______________________ 

 

S. 

No. 

Assessment Criteria Rating Remarks/ 

Commen

ts 

1.  Leadership initiative   

2.  Initiative in terms of new 

ideas and planning for 

the Company 

  

3.  Professional skills, 

problem solving, and 

decision-making 

  

S. 

No. 

Assessment Criteria Rating Remarks/ 

Commen

ts 

4.  Compliance with policies 

of the Company, ethics, 

code of conduct, etc. 

  

5.  Reporting of frauds, 

violation etc. 

  

6.  Safeguarding of interest 

of whistle blowers under 

vigil mechanism 

  

7.  Timely inputs on the 

minutes of the meetings 

of the Board and 

Committee, if any 

  

Board of Directors  

Some of the specific issues and questions that should be 

considered in a performance evaluation of the entire Board by 

Independent Directors, are set out below:  

S. 

No. 

Assessment Criteria Rating Remarks/ 

Commen

ts 

1.  The Board of Directors of 

the company is effective in 

decision making. 

  

2.  The Board of Directors is 

effective in developing a 

corporate governance 

structure that allows and 

encourages the Board to 

fulfill its responsibilities. 

  

3.  The Company’s systems of 

control are effective for 

identifying material risks 

and reporting material 

violations of policies and 

law. 

  

4.  The Board reviews the 

organization’s performance 

in carrying out the stated 

mission on a regular basis. 

  

5.  The Board of Directors is 

effective in providing 

necessary advice and 

suggestions to the 

company’s management. 

  

6.  Is the board as a whole up to 

date with latest 

developments in the 

regulatory environment and 

the market? 

  

7.  The information provided to 

directors prior to Board 

meetings meets your 

expectations in terms of 

length and level of detail. 

  

8.  Board meetings are 

conducted in a manner that 

encourages open 
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S. 

No. 

Assessment Criteria Rating Remarks/ 

Commen

ts 

communication, meaningful 

participation, and timely 

resolution of issues. 

9.  The Board Chairman 

effectively and appropriately 

leads and facilitates the 

Board meetings and the 

policy and governance work 

of the board. 

  

10.  The Board appropriately 

considers internal audit 

reports, management’s 

responses, and steps towards 

improvement. 

  

11.  The Board oversees the role 

of the independent auditor 

from selection to termination 

and has an effective process 

to evaluate the independent 

auditor’s qualifications and 

performance. 

  

12.  The board considers the 

independent audit plan and 

provides recommendations. 

  

Committees of Board  

The Board has constituted the following committees: 

1. Audit Committee; 

2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee; and 

3. Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

For evaluating the performance of each committee, the Board 

of Directors shall pay regards to the following aspects as set 

out in the annexure below: 

S. No Audit Committee (for Audit 

Committee members only) 

Rati

ng 

Rema

rks/ 

Com

ments 

1.  Committee meetings are 

conducted in a manner that 

encourages open communication, 

meaningful participation and 

timely resolution of issues 

  

2.  Timely inputs on the minutes of 

the meetings 

  

    

S. 

No. 

Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee (For Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee 

members only) 

Rati

ng 

Rema

rks/ 

Com

ments 

1.  Committee meetings are 

conducted in a manner that 

encourages open communication, 

meaningful participation and 

timely resolution of issues. 

  

2.  Timely inputs on the minutes of 

the meetings 

  

    

S. 

No. 

Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee (For Stakeholders 

Relationship Committee 

members only) 

Rati

ng 

Rema

rks/ 

Com

ments 

1.  Committee meetings are 

conducted in a manner that 

encourages open communication, 

meaningful participation and 

timely resolution of issues. 

  

2.  Timely inputs on the minutes of 

the meetings 

  

Key Managerial Personnel And Senior Executives 

For evaluating the performance of Key Managerial Personnel 

and other Senior Executives, the Board of Directors shall pay 

regards to the following aspects as set out below: 

Name of person being assessed: ______________________ 

 

S. No. Assessment Criteria Rating Remark

s/ 

Comme

nts 

1.  Abidance and behavior in 

accordance with ethical 

standards & code of conduct 

of Company 

  

2.  Interpersonal and 

communication skills 

  

3.  Compliance with policies of 

the Company, ethics, code of 

conduct, etc. 

  

4.  Safeguarding interest of 

whistle-blowers under vigil 

mechanism 

  

5.  Team work attributes   

6.  Safeguard of confidential 

information 

  

 

Review & Amendment 

The performance evaluation process will be reviewed 

annually by the “Nomination and Remuneration Committee”. 

Subject to the approval of Board of Directors, the Committee 

may amend the Policy, if required, to ascertain its 

appropriateness as per the needs of the Company.  

 

Disclosure 

Company will disclose details of its Board Performance 

Evaluation processes in its Board’s Report. The Board’s 

report containing such statement shall indicate the manner in 

which formal evaluation has been made by the Board of its 

own performance and that of the committees of the Board 

and individual directors of the Company. 

By the order of the Board 

For RMC Switchgears Limited 

(Formerly known as RMC Switch Gears Ltd.) 

 

Ashok Kumar Agarwal 

DIN: 00793152 

Chairman & Managing Director 

Place: Jaipur 

Dated: 22.08.2017
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ANNEXURE “B “TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2017 

[Pursuant to Section 204, 9(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 

and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 

The Members, 

RMC Switchgears Ltd., 

Jaipur 

 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance 

of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 

corporate practices by RMC Switchgears Ltd. (hereinafter 

called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 

manner that provided us reasonable basis for evaluating the 

Corporate Conducts/Statutory Compliances and expressing 

our opinion thereon. 

 

Based on our verification of the Company’s Books, Papers, 

Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company and also the information 

provided by the Company, its Officers, Agents and 

Authorised Representatives during the conduct of Secretarial 

Audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company 

has , during the Audit period covering the Financial Year 

ended on March 31, 2017 complied with the Statutory 

provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 

proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place 

to the extent, in the manner and subject to the extent, in the 

manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. 

 

We have examined the Books, Papers, Minute Books, Forms 

and Returns filed and other Records maintained by the 

Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2017 

according to the provisions of; 

 

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules 

made there under; 

2. The Securities Contracts ( Regulation) Act, 

1956(SCRA) and the rules made there under; 

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and 

Bye-law framed hereunder; 

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the 

rules and regulations made there under to the extent 

of Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct 

Investment; 

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines 

prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board 

of India , 1992 ( ‘ SEBI Act’); 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of 

India ( Substantial Acquisition of Shares 

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; Not 

Applicable under the review period. 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of 

India ( Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 1992/2015; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of 

India ( Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 

Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) 

Guidelines, 1999; Not Applicable under the 

review period. 

 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008; Not Applicable under 

the review period. 

 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of 

India ( Registration to an Issue and Share 

Transfers Agents ) Regulations, 1993; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 

Regulations, 2009; Not Applicable under 

the review period. 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of 

India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 

1998; Not Applicable under the review 

period. 

 

6. Other Laws applicable to the Company; 

 

(i) Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 

(j) The Factories Act, 1948 

(k) The Payment of Wages Act, 1936 

(l) The Minimum Wages Act, 1948 

(m) Employee State Insurance Act, 1948 

(n) The Employee Provident Fund and 

Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 

(o) The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 

(p) The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 

(q) The Contract Labour( Regulation and 

Abolition) Act, 1970 

(r) The Maternity Benefits Act, 1961 

(s) Competition Act, 2002 

(t) The Income Tax Act, 1961 

(u) The Central Excise Act, 1944 

(v) The Customs Act, 1962 

(w) The Finance Act, 1994 

 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable 

clause of the following; 

 

I. The Secretarial Standards issue by the Institute 

of Company Secretaries of India. 

II. The Listing Agreements entered into by the 

Company with Bombay Stock Exchange. 

III. The Listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Requirements (LODR), 2015 
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During the period under review the Company has complied 

with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 

Guidelines, Standards, etc mentioned above, However the 

Company may not complied with certain provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 

 

We further report that the Board of Directors of the Company 

is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent 

Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of 

Directors that took place during the period under review were 

carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

 

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the 

Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 

sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for 

seeking and obtaining further information and clarification on 

the agenda items before the Meeting and for meaningful 

participation at the Meeting. 

 

All decision at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are 

carried unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the 

Meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the 

Board, as the case may be. 

 

We further report that there are adequate systems and 

processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 

operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance 

with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

 

For Deepika Jain & Associates 

(Company Secretaries)  

 

 

 

 

(Deepika Jain) 

Proprietor 

M. No.: A41190  

CP: 16994   

 

Place: Jaipur 

Date: 22.08.2017 

 

 

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date 

which is annexed as “ANNEXURE- A is an integral part if 

this report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“ANNEXURE A” 

 

To, 

The Member, 

RMC Switchgears Ltd., 

Jaipur 

 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the 

responsibility of the management of the Company. 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

secretarial records based on our audit. 

 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes 

as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 

about the correctness of the contents of the 

Secretarial records. The verification was done on the 

test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 

Secretarial records. We believe that the processes 

and practices, we followed provide a reasonable 

basis for our opinion. 

 

3. We have not verified the correctness and 

appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the Company. 

 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the 

Management Representation about compliance of 

laws, rules and regulations and happenings of events 

etc. 

 

5. The compliance of provisions of Corporate and 

other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is 

the responsibility of the Management. Our 

examination was limited to the verification of 

procedures on test basis. 

 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance 

as to the future viability of the Company nor of 

efficacy or effectiveness with which the 

management has conducted the affairs of the 

Company.  

 

For Deepika Jain & Associates 

(Company Secretaries)  

 

 

(Deepika Jain) 

Proprietor 

M. No.: A41190  

CP: 16994   

 

Place: Jaipur 

Date: 22.08.2017 
  

  



 

 

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17    

 

 
18 
 

ANNEXURE “C “TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

Form No. MGT-9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

As on the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2017 

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 

I REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: 

 i CIN L27310RJ1994PLC008698 

ii Registration Date 23/08/1994 

iii Name of the Company RMC Switchgears Limited 

iv Category/Sub-category of the Company Public Company/ Limited By Shares 

v 

Address of the Registered office 

 & contact details 

7 Km. From Chaksu, Khotkawda Road, Village Badodiya, 

Tehsil Chaksu, Tonk Road, Jaipur-303901 Rajasthan 

0141-4400222 

Email id: cs@rmcindia.in 

vi Whether listed company YES 

vii Name, Address & contact details of the 

Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. Link Intime India Private Limited 

C-101, 1st Floor, 247 Park, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg,  

Vikhroli (West) Mumbai Maharastra- 400083 

Website: www.linkintime.co.in 
022-49186000 

 

II PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated hereunder: 

    S. No. Name & Description of  main Products/Services NIC Code of the  

Product /service 

% to total turnover  

of the company 

1 

Manufacturing of Electrical Equipment (Meter/Distribution 

Boxes) 279 86.25% 

 

III 

 

PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

      Sl 

No 

Name & Address of the 

Company 

CIN/GLN Holding/ Subsidiary/ 

Associate 

% Of  

Shares Held 

Applicable  

Section 

1 NA NA NA NA NA 

 
IV SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 

i) Category-wise Share Holding  

S. 

No. 

Category of 

Shareholder Shareholding at the beginning of the year - 2016 Shareholding at the end of the year - 2017 

% 

Change 

during 

the year 

    Demat Physical Total 

% of 

Demat  Physical  Total  

% of 

  

Total 

Shares 

Total 

Share

s 

http://www.linkintime.co.in/
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(A) 

Shareholding of 

Promoter and 

Promoter Group                   

[1] Indian                   

(a) 

Individuals / Hindu 

Undivided Family 0 904710 904710 83.69 2961960 0 2961960 58.17 -25.52 

(b) 

Central 

Government / State 

Government(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(c) 

Financial 

Institutions / Banks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(d) 

Any Other 

(Specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

  Sub Total (A)(1) 0 904710 904710 83.69 2961960 0 2961960 58.17 -25.52 

[2] Foreign                   

(a) 

Individuals (Non-

Resident 

Individuals / 

Foreign 

Individuals) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(b) Government 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(c) Institutions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(d) 

Foreign Portfolio 

Investor 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(e) 

Any Other 

(Specify) 0               0 

  Sub Total (A)(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

  

Total 

Shareholding of 

Promoter and 

Promoter 

Group(A)=(A)(1)

+(A)(2) 0 904710 904710 83.69 2961960 0 2961960 58.17 -25.52 

(B) 

Public 

Shareholding                   

[1] Institutions                   

(a) 

Mutual Funds / 

UTI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(b) 

Venture Capital 

Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(c) 

Alternate 

Investment Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(d) 

Foreign Venture 

Capital Investors 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(e) 

Foreign Portfolio 

Investor 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(f) 

Financial 

Institutions / Banks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(g) 

Insurance 

Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(h) 

Provident Funds/ 

Pension Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(i) 

Any Other 

(Specify) 0               0 

  Sub Total (B)(1) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

[2] 

Central 

Government/ State 

Government(s)/ 

President of India 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

  Sub Total (B)(2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

[3] Non-Institutions                   

(a) Individuals                   
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(i) 

Individual 

shareholders 

holding nominal 

share capital upto 

Rs. 1 lakh. 0 5160 5160 0.47 569150 0 569150 11.18 10.70 

(ii) 

Individual 

shareholders 

holding nominal 

share capital in 

excess of Rs. 1 

lakh 0 30250 30250 2.8 410520 0 410520 8.06 5.26 

(b) 

NBFCs registered 

with RBI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(c) Employee Trusts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(d) 

Overseas 

Depositories(holdi

ng DRs) (balancing 

figure) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(e) 

Any Other 

(Specify)                   

  

Hindu Undivided 

Family 0 0 0 0 342816 0 342816 6.73 6.73 

  

Non Resident 

Indians (Non 

Repat) 0 0 0 0 8000 0 8000 0.16 0.15 

  

Non Resident 

Indians (Repat) 0 0 0 0 48000 0 48000 0.94 0.94 

  Clearing Member 0 0 0 0 168953 0 168953 3.32 3.31 

  Bodies Corporate 0 140930 140930 13.04 569201 13600 582801 11.44 -1.59 

  Sub Total (B)(3) 0 140930 140930 13.04 2116640 13600 2130240 41.83 28.79 

  

Total Public 

Shareholding(B)=

(B)(1)+(B)(2)+(B)(

3) 0 176340 176340 16.31 2116640 13600 2130240 41.83 25.52 

  Total (A)+(B) 0 1081050 1081050 100 5078600 13600 5092200 100   

(C) 

Non Promoter - 

Non Public                   

[1] 

Custodian/DR 

Holder 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

[2] 

Employee Benefit 

Trust (under SEBI 

(Share based 

Employee Benefit) 

Regulations, 2014) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

  

Total Non 

Promoter - Non 

Public © 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

  Total (A)+(B)+(C)   1081050 1081050 100 5078600 13600 5092200 100   

 
 

         

Notes

: 1) Paid up Equity Shares Capital as on 01.04.2016 Rs. 1,08,10,500 

2) Allotment of Bonus Share Capital during the year Rs. 3,24,31,500 

3) Allotment of Equity Share Capital via IPO Rs. 76,80,000 

 

 

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters 

S.  No 

Shareholder's 

Name 

Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year - 2016 

Shareholding at the 

end of the year - 2017 

  

  

    

NO.OF 

SHARES 

HELD  

% of total 

Shares of 

the 

company  

%of Shares 

Pledged 

/encumbered 

to 

total shares 

NO.OF 

SHARES 

HELD 

% of total 

Shares of 

the 

company  

%of Shares 

Pledged/ 

encumbered 

to 

total shares 

% change in 

shareholding 

during the 

year  
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1 Ankit Agrawal 160220 14.82 - 569880 11.19 0 -3.62 

2 

Santosh 

Agarwal 

186380 17.24 

- 568520 11.16 0 -6.07 

3 

Vitthal Das 

Agarwal HUF 

164400 15.21 

- 500600 9.83 0 -5.37 

4 

Ashok Kumar 

Agarwal 

131250 12.14 

- 455000 8.93 0 -3.20 

5 

Parwati Bai 

Agrawal 

97230 8.99 

- 302920 5.94 0 -3.04 

6 

Ashok Kumar 

Agrawal HUF 

70710 6.54 

- 212840 4.17 0 -2.36 

7 Neha Agrawal 27500 2.54 - 110000 2.16 0 -0.37 

8 

Ankit Agarwal 

HUF 

26000 2.41 

- 104000 2.04 0 -0.36 

9 

Vitthal Das 

Agrawal 

15800 1.46 

- 63200 1.24 0 -0.21 

10 

Rajendra 

Kumar Agrawal 

10080 0.93 

- 40320 0.79 0 -0.13 

11 Atika Agrawal 8670 0.8 - 34680 0.68 0 -0.11 

Notes: 

1) Paid up Equity Shares Capital as on 01.04.2016 Rs. 1,08,10,500 

2) Allotment of Bonus Share Capital during the year Rs. 3,24,31,500 

3) Allotment of Equity Share Capital via IPO Rs. 76,80,000 

 

(iii)  Change in Promoters’ Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change) 

S. No. 

  

  

Name & Type of Transaction 

Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year - 2016 

  

Cumulative Shareholding 

at the end of the year - 2017 

  

No. of Shares 

Held 

% of Total 

Shares Of 

The 

Company 

No of Shares 

Held 

% of Total 

Shares of 

The 

Company 

1 ANKIT AGRAWAL         

  At the beginning of the year  160220 14.82 160220 14.82 

  Allotment of Bonus Shares3:1 on 08.06.2016 480660 11.11 640880 14.82 

  Transfer of shares by OFS on 09.03.2017 -71000 1.39 569880 11.19 

  AT THE END OF THE YEAR 569880 11.19 569880 11.19 

            

2 SANTOSH AGARWAL         

  At the beginning of the year  186380 17.24 186380 17.24 

  Allotment of Bonus Shares 3:1 on 08.06.2016 559140 12.93 745520 17.24 

  Transfer of shares by OFS on 09.03.2017 -177000 3.00 568520 11.16 

  AT THE END OF THE YEAR 568520 11.16 568520 11.16 

            

3 VITTHAL DAS AGARWAL HUF         

  At the beginning of the year  164400 15.21 164400 15.21 

  Allotment of Bonus Shares3:1 on 08.06.2016 493200 11.40 657600 15.21 

  Transfer of shares by OFS on 09.03.2017 -157000 3.08 500600 9.83 

  AT THE END OF THE YEAR 500600 9.83 500600 9.83 

            

4 ASHOK KUMAR AGARWAL         

  At the beginning of the year  131250 12.14 131250 12.14 

  Allotment of Bonus Shares3:1 on 08.06.2016 393750 9.11 525000 12.14 

  Transfer of shares by OFS on 09.03.2017 -70000 -1.37 455000 8.94 
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  AT THE END OF THE YEAR 455000 8.94 455000 8.94 

            

5 PARWATI BAI AGRAWAL         

  At the beginning of the year  97230 8.99 97230 8.99 

  Allotment of Bonus Shares3:1 on 08.06.2016 291690 6.75 388920 8.99 

  Transfer of shares by OFS on 09.03.2017 -86000 1.69 302920 5.95 

  AT THE END OF THE YEAR 302920 5.95 302920 5.95 

            

6 ASHOK KUMAR AGRAWAL HUF         

  At the beginning of the year  70710 6.54 70710 6.54 

  Allotment of Bonus Shares3:1 on 08.06.2016 212130 4.91 282840 6.54 

  Transfer of shares by OFS on 09.03.2017 -70000 1.37 212840 4.18 

  AT THE END OF THE YEAR 212840 4.18 212840 4.18 

            

7 NEHA AGRAWAL         

  At the beginning of the year  27500 2.54 27500 2.54 

  Allotment of Bonus Shares3:1 on 08.06.2016 82500 1.91 110000 2.54 

  AT THE END OF THE YEAR 110000 2.16 110000 2.16 

            

8 ANKIT AGARWAL HUF          

  At the beginning of the year  26000 2.41 26000 2.41 

  Allotment of Bonus Shares3:1 on 08.06.2016 78000 1.80 104000 2.41 

  AT THE END OF THE YEAR 104000 2.04 104000 2.04 

            

9 VITTHAL DAS AGRAWAL          

  At the beginning of the year  15800 1.46 15800 1.46 

  Allotment of Bonus Shares3:1 on 08.06.2016 47400 1.10 63200 1.46 

  AT THE END OF THE YEAR 63200 1.24 63200 1.24 

            

10 RAJENDRA KUMAR AGRAWAL         

  At the beginning of the year  10080 0.93 10080 0.93 

  Allotment of Bonus Shares3:1 on 08.06.2016 30240 0.70 40320 0.93 

  AT THE END OF THE YEAR 40320 0.79 40320 0.79 

            

11 ATIKA AGRAWAL         

  At the beginning of the year  8670 0.8 8670 0.8 

  Allotment of Bonus Shares3:1 on 08.06.2016 26010 0.60 34680 0.80 

  AT THE END OF THE YEAR 34680 0.68 34680 0.68 

      Notes: 
1) Paid up Equity Shares Capital as on 01.04.2016 Rs. 1,08,10,500 

2) Allotment of Bonus Share Capital during the year Rs. 3,24,31,500 

3) Allotment of Equity Share Capital via IPO Rs. 76,80,000 

 

(iv)  SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS (OTHER THAN DIRECORS, PROMOTERS & 

HOLDERS OF GDRS & ADRS) 

  Name & Type of Transaction NO.OF 

SHARES 

HELD 

% OF 

TOTAL 

SHARES 

OF THE 

COMPANY 

NO OF 

SHARES 

HELD 

% OF 

TOTAL 

SHARES 

OF THE 

COMPANY 

1 ARGENT LEASING AND FINANCE PVT.LTD         

  At the beginning of the year  137530 12.72 137530 12.72 
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  Allotment of Bonus Shares3:1 on 08.06.2016 412590 9.54 550120 12.72 

  Transfer 09.03.2017 -137000 2.69 413120 8.11 

  AT THE END OF THE YEAR 413120 8.11 413120 8.11 

            

2 ISHWAR PRASAD AGARWAL AND SONS .         

  At the beginning of the year  30250 2.80 30250 2.80 

  Allotment of Bonus Shares3:1 on 08.06.2016 90750 2.09 121000 11.19 

  AT THE END OF THE YEAR 121000 2.38 121000 2.38 

            

3 UTSAV PRAMODKUMAR SHRIVASTAV         

  At the beginning of the year  0 0.00 0 0.00 

  Transfer 17.03.2017 100000 1.96 100000 1.96 

  AT THE END OF THE YEAR 100000 1.96 100000 1.96 

            

4 MANOJ KUMAR KOTHARI HUF .         

  At the beginning of the year  0 0.00 0 0.00 

  Transfer 17.03.2017 60000 1.18 60000 1.18 

  AT THE END OF THE YEAR 60000 1.18 60000 1.18 

            

5 VINOD LODHA                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    0 0.00 

  At the beginning of the year  0 0.00 0 0.00 

  Transfer 10.03.2017 64000 1.26 64000 1.26 

  Transfer 17.03.2017 -40000 -0.78 24000 0.47 

  Transfer 31.03.2017 12000 0.24 36000 0.71 

  AT THE END OF THE YEAR 36000 0.71 36000 0.71 

            

6 EDELWEISS BROKING LTD                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          0 0.00 

  At the beginning of the year  0 0.00 0 0.00 

  Transfer 17.03.2017 4000 0.08 4000 0.08 

  Transfer 24.03.2017 32000 0.63 36000 0.71 

  AT THE END OF THE YEAR 36000 0.71 36000 0.71 

            

7 SYKES & RAY EQUITIES (I) LTD.     0 0.00 

  At the beginning of the year  0 0.00 0 0.00 

  Transfer 17.3.2017 4000 0.08 4000 0.08 

  Transfer 24.03.2017 36000 0.71 40000 0.79 

  Transfer 31.03.2017 -4000 0.08 36000 0.71 

  AT THE END OF THE YEAR 36000 0.71 36000 0.71 

            

8 SURAJ BAI         

  At the beginning of the year  6470 0.6 6470 0.6 

  Allotment of Bonus Shares3:1 on 08.06.2016 19410 0.44 25880 0.60 

  AT THE END OF THE YEAR 25880 0.51 25880 0.51 

           

9 ADHEESH KABRA HUF         

  At the beginning of the year  0 0.00 0 0.00 

  Transfer 17.03.2017 24000 0.47 24000 0.47 

  AT THE END OF THE YEAR 24000 0.47 24000 0.47 

            

10 MILIND K MADHANI         

  At the beginning of the year  0 0.00 0 0.00 

  Transfer 17.03.2017 12000 0.24 12000 0.24 
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  Transfer 24.03.2017 12000 0.24 24000 0.47 

  AT THE END OF THE YEAR 24000 0.47 24000 0.47 

Note:    1.   Paid up Share Capital of the Company (Face Value Rs. 10.00) at the end of the year is 5092200 Shares. 

             2.   The details of holding have been clubbed based on PAN. 

             3.   % of total Shares of the Company are based on the paid up Capital of the Company at the end of the Year. 

 

 

(v)  SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS & KMP 

  Shareholding at the end of 

the year 

  Cumulative 

Shareholding during the 

year 

For Each of the Directors & KMP No. of 

shares 

% of total shares 

of the company 

Reason No of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of the 

company 

ASHOK KUMAR AGARWAL (Chairman & 

Managing Director)           

At the beginning of the year  131250 12.14   131250 12.14 

Allotment of Bonus Shares3:1 on 08.06.2016 393750 9.11 Allotment 525000 12.14 

Transfer of shares by OFS on 09.03.2017 -70000 -1.37 

Transfer by 

OFS 

455000 8.94 

AT THE END OF THE YEAR 455000 8.94   455000 8.94 

            

ANKIT AGRAWAL (Whole Time Director)           

At the beginning of the year  160220 14.82   160220 14.82 

Allotment of Bonus Shares3:1 on 08.06.2016 480660 11.11 Allotment 640880 14.82 

Transfer of shares by OFS on 09.03.2017 -71000 1.39 

Transfer by 

OFS 569880 

11.19 

AT THE END OF THE YEAR 569880 11.19   569880 11.19 

            

NEHA AGRAWAL (Executive Director)           

At the beginning of the year  27500 2.54   27500 2.54 

Allotment of Bonus Shares3:1 on 08.06.2016 82500 1.91 Allotment 110000 2.54 

AT THE END OF THE YEAR 110000 2.16   110000 2.16 

            

SURESH KUMAR JAIN  (Independent Non-

Executive Director) 

NONE 

At the beginning of the year 

Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share 

holding during the year specifying the reasons for 

increase/decrease (e.g. 

allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc) 

At the end of the year 

DEVI SHANKAR GOYAL (Independent Non-

Executive Director) 

At the beginning of the year 

Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share 

holding during the year specifying the reasons for 

increase/decrease (e.g. 

allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc) 

At the end of the year 

RADHIKA AGARWAL (Independent Non-

Executive Director) 

At the beginning of the year 
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Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share 

holding during the year specifying the reasons for 

increase/decrease (e.g. 

allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc) 

At the end of the year 

SHIV CHARAN MAHESHWARI (CFO) 

At the beginning of the year 

Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share 

holding during the year specifying the reasons for 

increase/decrease (e.g. 

allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc) 

At the end of the year 

PRIYANKA GATTANI(Company Secretary) 

At the beginning of the year 

Date wise increase/decrease in Promoters Share 

holding during the year specifying the reasons for 

increase/decrease (e.g. 

allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat equity etc) 

At the end of the year 

 

V.  INDEBTEDNESS 

   
Amount In Rupee 

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment 

  

Secured Loans 

 excluding deposits 

Unsecured  

Loans 

Deposits Total  

Indebtedness 

Indebtness at the beginning of the financial year 

        

i) Principal Amount 144158659.7 122185948.3 - 266344608 

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - - 

iii) Interest accrued but not due 271233 - - 271233 

Total (i+ii+iii) 144429892.69 122185948.3   266615840.96 

          

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year 

  

    

  

Additions - 34509022.76 - 34509022.76 

Reduction 9982311.99 - - 9982311.99 

Net Change         

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year 

  

    

  

i) Principal Amount 134447580.70 156694971.03   291142551.73 

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - - 

iii) Interest accrued but not due 271233 - - 271233 

Total (i+ii+iii) 134718813.70 156694971.03   291413784.73 

 

VI.   REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

  

(A)  Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager: 

        Amount In Rupee 

Sl.No Particulars of Remuneration  Name of the MD/WTD/Manager Total Amount 
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Ashok Kumar 

Agarwal 

Ankit Agrawal Neha Agrawal 

  

1 Gross salary         

  

(a) Salary as per provisions 

contained in section 17(1) of the 

Income Tax. 1961. 1075000 950000 525000 2550000 

  

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 

17(2) of the Income tax Act, 

1961 - - - - 

  

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary 

under section 17(3) of the 

Income Tax Act, 1961 Nil Nil Nil Nil 

2 Stock option Nil Nil Nil Nil 

3 Sweat Equity Nil Nil Nil Nil 

4 Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil 

  as % of profit Nil Nil Nil Nil 

  others (specify) Nil Nil Nil Nil 

5 Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil 

  Total (A)         

  
Ceiling as per the Act Remuneration paid to directors is as per ceiling limit of the Company act, 2013. 

 

     

(B) Remuneration to other directors: 

S.No Particulars of Remuneration Name of the Directors Total Amount 

1 Independent Directors Suresh Kumar Jain Devi Shankar 

Goyal 

Radhika Agarwal   

  

(a) Fee for attending board 

committee meetings 

NONE 

  (b) Commission 

  (c ) Others, please specify 

  Total (1) 

2 Other Non Executive Directors 

  

(a) Fee for attending 

board committee meetings 

  (b) Commission 

  (c ) Others, please specify. 

  Total (2) 

  Total (B)=(1+2) 

  
Total Managerial 

Remuneration 

  Overall Ceiling as per the Act.   

(C) Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD   

Sl. 

No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel 

1 Gross Salary CEO Company 

Secretary 

CFO Total 

  

(a) Salary as per provisions 

contained in section 17(1) of the 

Income Tax Act, 1961. -  202500  303000  505500  

  

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 

17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 

1961 -  - - - 
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(c ) Profits in lieu of salary 

under section 17(3) of the 

Income Tax Act, 1961 NA NA NA NA 

2 Stock Option NA NA NA NA 

3 Sweat Equity NA NA NA NA 

4 Commission NA NA NA NA 

  as % of profit NA NA NA NA 

  others, specify NA NA NA NA 

5 Others, please specify NA NA NA NA 

  Total         

 

VII.    PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES 

            

Type Section of 

the 

Companies 

Act 

Brief 

Description 

Details of 

Penalty/Punishment/Compounding 

fees imposed 

Authority 

(RD/NCLT/Court) 

Appeall 

made if 

any 

(give 

details) 

A.  COMPANY 

NONE 

  

Penalty 

Punishment 

Compounding 

  

B. DIRECTORS 

  

Penalty 

Punishment 

Compounding 

  

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN 

DEFAULT 

  

Penalty 

Punishment 

Compounding 

 

By the order of the Board 

For RMC Switchgears Limited 

(Formerly known as RMC Switch Gears Ltd.) 

 

Ashok Kumar Agarwal 

DIN: 00793152          Place: Jaipur 

Chairman & Managing Director        Dated: 22.08.2017 
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ANNEXURE “D “TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

FORM NO. AOC.2 

 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the 

Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements 

entered into by the company with related parties referred to in 

sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 

including certain arms length transactions under third proviso 

thereto  

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at 

arm's length basis  

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: 

N.A. 

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: N.A.  

(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions: N.A. 

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 

transactions including the value, if any: N.A.  

 

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or 

arrangements or transactions: N.A.  

(f) Date of approval by the Board: N.A. 

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any:  N.A. 

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in 

general meeting as required under first proviso to section 

188: N.A.  

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions 

at arm's length basis: N.A.  

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: 

N.A.  

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: N.A.  

(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions: N.A. 

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 

transactions including the value, if any: N.A.  

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: N.A.  

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A. 

 

By the order of the Board 

For RMC Switchgears Limited 

(Formerly known as RMC Switch Gears Ltd.) 

 

Ashok Kumar Agarwal 

DIN: 00793152 

Chairman & Managing Director 

Place: Jaipur 

Dated: 22.08.2017 

 

ANNEXURE “E “TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and 

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

 

The information under section 134(3) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 for the year ended March 31, 2017 

is given below and forms port of the Director’s Report. 

 

(A) Conservation of Energy 

 

a) Company ensures that the manufacturing operations 

are conducted in the manner whereby optimum 

utilisation and maximum possible savings of energy is 

achieved. 

b) No specific investment has been made in reduction in 

energy consumption. 

c) As the impact of measures taken for conservation and 

optimum utilisation of energy are not quantitative, its 

impact on cost cannot be stated accurately. 

d) Since the Company does not fall under the list of 

industries, which should furnish this information in 

Form A annexed to the Companies (Disclosure of 

particular in report of Board of Director) Rules, 

1988, So we are not required to furnish such 

information. 

 

(B) Technology Absorption 

 

Efforts in brief, made towards Technology absorption, 

adaptation and innovation: 

 

The Company continues to perform Product Development 

activities to improve quality of products and to reduce 

production cost to serve its customer better. 

 

Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts: 

 

Improvement in overall productivity, quality of the 

products and reduced process scrap and cost 

   

In case of imported technology (imported during the 

last 3 years reckoned from the beginning of the 

financial year), following information may be 

furnished: 

 

Technology Imported -No technology has been imported 

by the Company. 

Year of Import- N. A. 

Has technology been fully absorbed -N. A. 

If not fully absorbed, areas where this has not taken place, 

reasons therefore and future plans of action: N. A. 

 

The expenditure incurred on Research and 

Development 

Company has not incurred any expenditure on Research 

and Development 

                                   

(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

 

a) Activities relating to exports, initiatives taken to 

increase exports, development of new export 

markets for products and services and export 

plans: NIL. 
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b) The details of earnings in foreign currency and 

outgo of foreign currency are as under: 

 

 
 Year Ended 

31.03.2017 

 Year Ended 

31.03.2016 

A)  

Foreign 

Currency used 

for:  Rs. 

a)  Raw  Materials  2,081,191.00 77,84,984.92 

b)  Capital Goods  6,672,620.00 -  

c) 

Expenditure in 

Foreign 

Currency 461,383.73 1,33,550.00 

B)  

 Earnings in 

Foreign 

Currency  -  -    

 

By the order of the Board 

For RMC Switchgears Limited 

(Formerly known as RMC Switch Gears Ltd.) 

 

Ashok Kumar Agarwal 

DIN: 00793152 

Chairman & Managing Director 

Place: Jaipur 

Dated: 22.08.2017 

 

ANNEXURE “F“TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 

 

Preamble: 

This Nomination and Remuneration Policy is being 

formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)  read  along  with rules 

there under and Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, as amended from time    to time. 

 

Applicability: 

This Nomination and Remuneration Policy (the “Policy”) 

applies to the Board of Directors (the “Board”), Key 

Managerial Personnel (the “KMP”) and the Senior 

Management Personnel of RMC Switchgears Limited (the 

“Company”). 

 

Definitions: 

“Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given 

or passed to any person for services rendered by him and 

includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act,   

1961; 

“Key Managerial Personnel” means: 

1. Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or 

Manager and  in  their absence, a Whole-time  

Director; 

2. Company Secretary; 

3. Chief  Financial  Officer; and 

4. Such other officer as may be prescribed. 

 

“Senior Managerial Personnel” mean the personnel of the 

company who are members of its core management team 

excluding Board of Directors. Normally, this would 

comprise all members of management, of rank equivalent to 

General Manager and above, including all functional heads. 

 

Objective: 

The objective of the policy is to ensure that:- 

1. The level and composition of remuneration is 

reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate 

directors of the quality required to run the company 

successfully; 

2. Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear 

and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and 

3. Remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel 

and senior management involves a balance between 

fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term 

performance objectives appropriate to the working of 

the company and its   goals. 

 

Role of the Committee: 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee being 

constituted in compliance of Section 178 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read along with rules thereunder and 

Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended 

from time to time will be working as under: 

The role of the NRC will be the   following:- 

1. To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, 

positive attributes and independence of a Director. 

2. To formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent 

Directors, Board and its Committees. 

3. To identify persons who are qualified to become 

Directors and who may be appointed in Senior 

Management in accordance with the criteria laid down 

in this policy. 

4. To carry out evaluation of Director’s performance. 

5. To recommend to the Board the appointment and 

removal of Directors and Senior Management. 

6. To recommend to the Board policy relating to 

remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 

and Senior Management. 

7. To devise a policy on Board diversity, composition,   

size. 

8. To carry out any other function as is mandated by the 

Board from time to time and / or enforced by any 

statutory notification, amendment or modification, as 

may be   applicable. 

9. To perform such other functions as may be necessary 

or appropriate for the performance of its duties. 

 

Appointment And Removal Of Director, Key 

Managerial Personnel And Senior Management: 

1. The Committee shall identify and ascertain the 

integrity, qualification, expertise  and  experience  of  

the  person  for  appointment  as Director, KMP or at 

Senior Management level and recommend his / her 

appointment,  as  per Company’s Policy. 
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2. A person should possess adequate qualification, 

expertise and experience for the position he / she is 

considered for appointment. The Committee has 

authority to decide whether qualification, expertise 

and experience possessed by a person are sufficient / 

satisfactory for the position. 

3. The Company shall not appoint or continue the 

employment of any person as Whole-time Director 

who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided 

that the term of the  person holding  this  position  may 

be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the 

approval of shareholders by passing a  special  

resolution. 

4. The Company shall not appoint or continue the 

employment of any person as whole-time Director 

who is an undercharged insolvent or has at any time 

been adjudged as an insolvent. 

 

Term / Tenure: 

 

a) Managing Director/Whole-time Director: 

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its 

Executive Chairman, Managing Director or Executive 

Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No 

re-appointment shall be made earlier than one year before 

the expiry of term. 

b) Independent Director: 

Company shall have at least 50% of the total number of 

directors as independent directors and all independent 

directors shall meet the criteria as laid as laid down in 

Section 149(6) of the   Act. 

An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to 

five consecutive years on the Board of the Company and 

will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of an 

ordinary resolution by the Company and disclosure of such 

appointment in the Board's    report. 

No Independent Director shall hold office for more than 

two consecutive terms of upto maximum of 5 years each, 

but such Independent Director shall be eligible for 

appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to 

become an Independent Director. 

Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the 

said period of three years, be appointed in or be associated 

with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or 

indirectly. 

At the time of appointment of Independent Director it 

should be ensured that number of Boards on which such 

Independent Director Serves is restricted to seven listed 

companies as an Independent Director and three listed 

companies as an Independent Director in case such person 

is serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed company or 

such other number as may be prescribed under the Act. 

 

Evaluation: 

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance 

of Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel yearly 

or at such intervals as may be considered necessary. 

 

Removal: 

The Committee may recommend with reasons recorded in 

writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior 

Management Personnel subject to the provisions and 

compliance of the Companies Act, 2013, rules and 

regulations and the policy of the   Company. 

 

Retirement: 

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel 

shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Act. The 

Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, 

Senior Management Personnel in the same position/ 

remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the 

retirement age, for the benefit of the Company. 

 

Policy for Remuneration To Directors/ KMP/ Senior 

Management Personnel: 

 

1) Remuneration to Managing Director / Whole-time 

Directors: 

a) Remuneration/ Commission etc. to be paid to 

Managing Director / Whole-time Directors, etc. shall 

be governed  as  per  provisions  of the Companies 

Act, 2013, Schedule V of the Act  and  rules  made 

there under or any other enactment for the time being 

in force and the approvals obtained from the Members 

of the   Company. 

b) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall 

make such recommendations to the Board of 

Directors, as it may consider appropriate with regard 

to remuneration to Managing Director / Whole-time 

Directors to attract, retain and motivate   them. 

c) Company may make a balance in remuneration by fix 

and variable reflecting short term and long term 

performance and working of the company. 

2) Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent 

Directors: 

a) The Non-Executive / Independent Directors may receive 

sitting fees and such other remuneration as permissible 

under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with 

rules thereunder and provisions of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015. The amount of sitting fees shall be such as may be 

recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee and approved by the Board of Directors and 

members from time to time. 

b) All the remuneration of the Non-Executive / 

Independent Directors (excluding remuneration for 

attending meetings as prescribed under Section 197 

(5) of the Companies Act, 2013) shall be subject to 

ceiling/ limits as provided under Companies Act, 2013 

and rules made thereunder or any other enactment for 

the time being in force. The amount of such 

remuneration shall be such as may be recommended 

by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 

approved by the Board of Directors or shareholders, as 

the case may be. 

c) An Independent Director shall not be eligible to get 

Stock Options and also shall not be eligible to 

participate in any share based payment schemes of the   
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Company. 

d) Any remuneration paid to Non-Executive  /  

Independent  Directors for services rendered which are 

of professional in nature shall not  be considered as 

part of the remuneration for  the  purposes  of clause 

(b) above if the following conditions are satisfied: 

i) The Services are rendered by such Director in his 

capacity as the professional; and 

ii) In the opinion of the Committee, the director 

possesses the requisite qualification for the practice of 

that profession. 

3) Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and 

Senior Management: 

a) The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and 

Senior Management shall consist of fixed pay and 

incentive pay reflecting their short term and long term 

performance and working, in compliance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in 

accordance with the Company’s Policy. 

b) The Compensation Committee of the Company, 

constituted for the purpose of administering the 

Employee Stock Option/ Purchase Schemes, shall 

determine the stock options and other share based 

payments to be made to Key Managerial Personnel 

and Senior Management. 

c) The Fixed pay shall include monthly remuneration, 

employer’s contribution to Provident Fund, 

contribution to pension fund, pension schemes, etc. as 

decided from to time. 

d) The Incentive pay shall be decided based on the 

balance between performance of the Company and 

performance of the Key Managerial Personnel and 

Senior Management, to be decided annually or at such 

intervals as may be considered appropriate. 

 

Loan to KMP, Senior Management and Other 

Employees of the Company: (Except Director Which is 

Governed by Section 185 of The Companies Act, 2013) 

 

1) Company may consider the loan applications received 

form KMP, Senior Management and other employees 

of the   company. 

2) The loan may be granted/ sanctioned for purchase of 

vehicle, medical treatment of self and family 

dependent or to meet other personal expenditure. 

3) The loan may be given at a concessional rate of 

interest or interest free at the sole discretion of the 

board/company. 

4) The amount of loan, repayment period, and mode of 

repayment, amount of installment, extension and other 

relevant terms & conditions may be decided by 

board/company as they/it deem fit or suitable from 

time to time. 

5) The company may take suitable steps to secure the 

loan given by availing collateral security, deposit of 

title deed/papers of the vehicle/property concerned or 

by taking post dated cheque or any other way. 

 

Implementation: 

1) The Committee may recommend to the board or board 

may issue guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting 

mechanism and manuals in supplement and for better 

implementation of this policy as considered 

appropriate. 

2) The Committee may Delegate any of its powers to one 

or more of its members or directors of the company. 

The NRC may recommend changes, if any or the Board 

may itself amend the policy from time to time in 

accordance with Act, Rules, and Provisions in force. 

 

By the order of the Board 

For RMC Switchgears Limited 

(Formerly known as RMC Switch Gears Ltd.) 

 

Ashok Kumar Agarwal 

DIN: 00793152 

Chairman & Managing Director 

Place: Jaipur 

Dated: 22.08.2017 

 

ANNEXURE “G“TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT                                   

Details under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

Rule Particulars 

(i) The Ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the 

median remuneration of the employees of the 

Company for the financial year. 

a Mr. Ashok Kumar Agarwal, 

Chairman & Managing Director 

4.36 

b Mr. Ankit Agrawal, Whole Time 

Director 

3.85 

c Mrs. Neha Agrawal, Executive 

Director 

2.13 

(ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each 

Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive 

Officer, Company Secretary in the financial year. 

a Mr. Ashok Kumar Agarwal, 

Chairman & Managing Director 

19.44% 

b Mr. Ankit Agrawal, Whole Time 

Director 

58.33% 

c Mrs. Neha Agrawal, Executive 

Director 

Nil 

d Mr. Shiv Charan Maheshwari, Chief 

Financial Officer 

Nil 
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e Priyanka Gattani, Company 

Secretary 

Nil 

(iii) *The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year.- 14.10% 

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company - 60 

(v) The explanation on the relationship between average 

increase in remuneration and Company performance. 

The Average increase is based on the objectives of Remuneration 

Policy of the Company that is designed to attract, motivate and 

retain the employees who are the drivers of organization success 

and helps the Company to retain its industry competitiveness .Pay 

mix is designed to reflect the performance and is aligned to the 

long term interests of the shareholders. 

(vi) Average percentile increase already made in the 

salaries   of employees other than the managerial 

personnel in the last Financial Year and its 

comparison with the percentile increase in the 

managerial remuneration and justification thereof and 

point out if there are any exceptional circumstances 

for increase in the managerial remuneration. 

The average managerial percentage  has been  decreased by 

18.52% due to increase in no. of managerial personnel in the F.Y. 

2016-17 while for others it is increased to 15.36%.This is based on 

Remuneration policy of the Company that rewards people 

differentially based on their contribution to the success of the 

Company and also ensures that external market competitiveness 

and internal relativities are taken care of. 

(vii) It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company. 

Note:  

(a) The Non-Executive Directors of the Company are entitled for sitting fees and commission as per statutory provisions and within 

the limits approved by the shareholders. The details of remuneration of Non-Executive Directors are provided in the Corporate 

Governance Report. The ratio of remuneration and percentage increase for Non-Executive Directors is therefore not considered for 

the above purpose. 

(b) The median remuneration of employees of the company was Rs. 246450/-p.a. 

(c) The median remuneration calculated on the basis of employee who worked for whole financial year 2016-17 

(d) For calculation of median remuneration of employee total remuneration paid during the year was taken of the all employee except 

contract labour. Employee Join/ left during the year were not considered for this calculation 

  

Details under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

Sl 

No.  

Name of Employee Designation Remuneration 

 1  Mr. Ashok Kumar Agarwal  Chairman & Managing Director 1075000 

2 Mr. Ankit Agrawal Whole Time Director 950000 

3 Mr. Dinesh Modi Technical Head 754000 

4 Mr. Nitesh.K. .Patel Compound Plant Head 600660 

5 Mr. Kamlesh K.Patel SMC Plant Head 600660 

6 Mr. Ravindra Sharma Senior Accountant 517700 

7 Mr. Yogesh Upadhyay Vice President (Project) 516000 

8 Mr. Tarun Sharma General Manager  (Work) 475000 

9 Mr. Sudhir Bishnoi DGM (Marketing) 474000 

10 Mrs. Suman Sharma Project Assistant 375000 

Note:  

(1) None of the employee was in receipt of remuneration for the year, in the aggregate, Which was not less than One Crore and Two 

lakh rupee. 

(2) None of the employee employed part of the year that was in receipt of remuneration at a rate which in the aggregate was not less 

than Eight Lakh fifty thousand rupee per month 
By the order of the Board 

For RMC Switchgears Limited 

(Formerly known as RMC Switch Gears Ltd.) 

 

Ashok Kumar Agarwal 

DIN: 00793152          Place: Jaipur 

Chairman & Managing Director        Dated: 22.08.2017 

 

 

 



 

 

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17    

 

 
33 
 

ANNEXURE “H “TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Declaration of Chairman & Managing Director 

regarding compliance by Board Members And Senior 

Management Personnel With The Company’s Code Of 

Conduct  

 

I hereby confirm that The Company has in respect of the 

financial year ended March 31, 2017 received a declaration 

of compliance with the Code of Conduct from the Senior 

Management Team of the Company and the Members of 

the Board as applicable to them. 

 

By the order of the Board 

For RMC Switchgears Limited 

(Formerly known as RMC Switch Gears Ltd.) 

 

Ashok Kumar Agarwal 

DIN: 00793152 

Chairman & Managing Director 

Place: Jaipur 

Dated: 22.08.2017 

 

 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT 

Overview 

The Indian electrical equipment industry comprises of two 

broad segments – generation equipment (boilers, turbines, 

generators) and transmission & distribution (T&D) and allied 

equipment like transformers, cables, transmission lines, 

switch gears, capacitors, energy meters, instrument 

transformers, surge arrestors, stamping and lamination, 

insulators, insulating material, industrial electronics, 

indicating instruments, winding wires, etc. 

 

Sector Analysis  

  The generation equipment sector is around 15% of the 

total industry, while the T&D equipment sector is the 

rest 85% in 2014-15.Generators, Generating Sets & 

Parts, Switchgear and Control gear, Transformers & 

Parts, Cables, Industrial Electronics, Boilers & Parts, 

Transmission Line Towers etc. 

 The sector boasts of a diversified, matured and strong 

manufacturing base backed by a robust supply chain. 

Rugged performance design of equipment to meet tough 

network demand and presence of major foreign players, 

either directly or through technical collaborations with 

Indian manufacturers is a testimony of unique 

advantages India holds in this sector. 

 With state-of-the-art technology in most sub-sectors at 

par with global standards, the major export markets for 

Indian electrical equipment are USA, Germany, UAE, 

Saudi Arabia, France, UK, Nigeria, China, Kenya and 

Brazil. The major export products are Rotating 

Machines (Motors, AC Generators, and Generating 

Sets) & Parts, Switchgear and Control gear, 

Transformers & Parts, Cables, Industrial Electronics, 

Boilers & 

Parts, and Transmission Line Towers etc. (Source: 

http://ieema.org) 

 

Industry Structure and Development 

India’s electrical equipment industry is highly diverse and 

manufactures a wide range of high and low technology 

products. The industry directly employs around half million 

persons and provides indirect employment to another one 

million people. The industry can be broadly classified into 

two sectors – generation equipment and T&D equipment. 

Other electrical equipment, including instrument 

transformers, surge arrestors, stamping and lamination, 

insulators, insulating material, industrial electronics, 

indicating instruments, winding wires, etc., contributed to 

`25,000 crore (US$ 5.2 billion). 

 

There has been an overall growth in most segments of the 

electrical equipment industry — in boilers, turbines, 

generators, transformers, switchgears, and wires and cables 

due to the high demand from central and state power utilities. 

India’s EE industry is expected to grow steadily and witness 

growth opportunities as a result of the government‘s focus on 

capacity augmentation across generation, transmission and 

distribution. (Source: http://ieema.org) 

 

Your Company started its operations in the year 1995 with 

production of Enclosures of Energy Meters, LT/HT 

Distribution Boxes and Panels. Over the years, we have 

gradually expanded our product base. Now your company 

is ISO 9001:2008 certified Company engaged in the 

business of designing and manufacturing of Enclosures of 

Energy Meters, LT/HT Distribution Boxes and Panels, 

Junction Boxes, Feeder Pillars and other Power Distribution 

and Circuit Protection Switchgears made from Mild Steel, 

Stainless Steel in Fabrication and Deep Drawn Process 

along with Sheet Moulding Compound and Bulk Moulding 

Compound (DMC) materials. Your company also 

undertaking work involving laying of energy transmission 

lines and establishing electric substation, fixing of new 

energy meters and shifting of existing energy meters from 

inside to outside etc in different regions of the country.  

 

Under the leadership of Promoters your company, have 

strengthened our manufacturing capacity to cope with the 

changing market demand and upgrading the technology. 

With the experience of Promoters & senior management 

Your Company been able to sustain and grow in the past. 

Our customer base includes many names from Indian 

private sector namely Larson & Toubro Limited, KEI 

Industries Limited, NCC Limited, IL&FS Engineering & 

Construction Co Ltd, BSES Ltd, IRCON Ltd, Drake & 

Scull Ltd, etc and state owned power utilities in the states 



 

 

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17    

 

 
34 
 

of Rajasthan, Haryana, Uttar Pradesh, Madhya Pradesh, 

Punjab, Bihar, Karnataka, Gujarat, Uttaranchal and Assam. 

 

Our Company has also undertaken work under the Central 

funded schemes such as RGGVY and R-APDRP schemes 

as well as the State funded schemes such as Feeder 

Separation Schemes providing trouble free electricity to 

both urban and rural areas. 

 

SWOT Analysis 

Strengths: 

 Quality of the products gives a market edge for most 

of the suppliers. 

 Manufacturing of SMC enclosures, demand for 

which is continuously rising. 

 Competitive edge in terms of quality and 

competitive bidding.   

 The company has well knit marketing network. 

 Long Experience of Promoter in the Field. 

 Strong Management Team and a motivated and 

efficient work force. 

 Profit making company since incorporation with 

proven track record. 

Weaknesses: 

 Company has to mainly depend on the financially weak 

SEBs for its sales. Though the payment is almost secure 

but the delay in payment is normal feature of some of the 

SEBs.  

 Uncertainty and slow pace of reforms. 

 Macroeconomic challengers which constrain public and 

private funding. 

 

Opportunities: 

 The Government is focusing on increasing the 

penetration of power supply in villages.  

 Expansion of key industry sector like power, steel, 

petrochemicals, telecom and others. 

 Per capita consumption of energy being relatively low, 

the growth potential for this industry in medium and long 

term is high. 

 Replacement and retrofitting programmes. 

 Government’s focus on improving health of Electricity 

Boards through various schemes and other measures 

 Manufacturing of SMC enclosures, demand for which is 

continuously risin 

Threats 

 Stiff competition in the Electrical industry. 

 Change of technology. 

 Opening of the Indian economy for overseas 

players 

 Any unfavourable change in Govt. Policies may 

affect the profitability of the company. 

 Entry of new competitors in the domestic market. 

 Scarcity of technically skilled personnel. 

 

Segment-Wise or Product-Wise Performance 

The Company is mainly engaged in the business of 

manufacturing of Distribution Boxes and Panels, Junction 

Boxes, Feeder Pillars, so the Management considers as this is 

the only business segment of the Company. 

 

Industry Outlook 

There is still lot of potential for growth in the turnover of the 

Company because the demand of Company’s products in the 

market is fast increasing. The Company is specially 

developing an innovative and different type of product as per 

requirement of the market. There is a strong Demand of SMC 

enclosures in the market hence management has planned to 

expand its production capacity to cater the increased demand. 

  

In the Financial year 2017-18 your company apart from 

current manufacturing operation, took an important step in 

building the one more pillar of its growth strategy by 

commencing new project for manufacturing of environmental 

friendly “Imitation Marble and Wooden Surfaces for walls 

and floors with production capacity of more than 20lakh 

Sq. Ft. of sheets/ profile per anum” in the same factory 

situated at Chaksu Jaipur. 

 

Risk and Concern  

Your Company continuously ascertains risks and concerns in 

the Electrical Industry affecting its present operations, future 

performances and business environment. In order to 

overcome such risks and concerns your Company adopts 

preventive measures as considered expedient and necessary. 

 

Internal Control System and Their Adequacy 

The Company has adequate internal control system, 

commensurate with the size of its operations. Adequate 

records and documents are maintained as required by laws. 

The Audit Committee reviews adequacy and effectiveness of 

the Company’s internal control environment and monitors the 

implementation of audit recommendations. The Audit 

Committee gives valuable suggestions from time to time for 

improvement of the company’s business processes, systems 

and internal controls. All efforts are being made to make the 

internal control systems more effective 

 

Discussions on Financial Performance Vis-À-Vis 

Operational Performance 

Financial performance of the Company has been good 

despite of an adverse economic environment and your 

company is doing well on fulfilling its objectives of growth, 

profitability and maximization of shareholders wealth.  

During the year company made net profit Rs. 153.15 Lakh 

and last year net profit was Rs. 21.91 Lakh. This Year 

turnover of our company is Rs.5589.68 Lakh and last year 

turnover was 6074.76 Lakh; EBIDTA of your company is Rs. 

726.88 Lakh during the year. 

 

Material Developments in Human Resources / 

Industrial Relations Front Including Number of People 

Employed 

The Company always believes that its growth is closely 

linked with the growth and overall development of its 
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employees. The Company is committed to upgrade the skill 

of its employees and to create an environment where 

excellence is recognized and rewarded. The target is to 

place right people at right position and to enhance the 

efficiency, working speed, competency and time 

management skill of its employees. The Company’s 

endeavour is to create an environment where people can use 

all of their capabilities in promoting the business of the 

Company. Number of on rolls people employed, as on 

31/03/2017 is 60. 

 

Cautionary Statement 

The report may contain certain statements that the 

Company believes are, or may be considered to be 

“forward looking statements “that describe our objectives, 

plans or goals. All these forward looking statements are 

subject to certain risks and uncertainties, including but 

limited to, Government action, economic development, 

risks inherent in the Company’s growth strategy and other 

factors that could cause the actual results to differ 

materially from those contemplated by the relevant 

forward looking statements.  

 

By the order of the Board 

For RMC Switchgears Limited 

(Formerly known as RMC Switch Gears Ltd.) 

 

Ashok Kumar Agarwal 

DIN: 00793152 

Chairman & Managing Director 

Place: Jaipur 

Dated:22.08.2017

 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended March 31, 2017, in terms of 

Regulation 34(3) read with schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

(“Listing Regulation”) 

 

1. Company’s Philosophy on Code of Governance 

 

Corporate Governance is the application of best 

management practices, compliances of law and adherence 

to ethical standards to achieve the Company's objective of 

enhancing shareholder value and discharge of social 

responsibilities. Adopting high standards gives comfort to 

all existing and potential stakeholders including 

government and regulatory authorities, customers, 

suppliers, bankers, employees and shareholders. Your 

Company believes in adopting and adhering to the best 

standards of Corporate Governance. RMC Switchgears 

Limited's philosophy on Corporate Governance enshrines 

the goal of achieving the highest level of transparency, 

accountability and equity in all spheres of its operations. 

Your Company is committed towards transparency in all its 

dealings and places high emphasis on business principles 

and believes the good Corporate Governance goes beyond 

working results and financial priority and is pre-requisite 

for the attainment of excellent performance.  

 

RMC Switchgears Limited is committed to adhere to the 

Code of Corporate Governance as it means adoption of 

best business practices aimed at growth of the Company 

coupled with bringing benefits to Investors, Customers, 

Creditors and Society at large.  Your Company consistently 

endeavors to attain the highest standards of Corporate 

Governance by ensuring transparency in all its operations, 

disclosures and to maximize shareholder’s value and places 

emphasis on business ethics.  

 

Above all, corporate governance must balance individual 

interest with corporate goals and operate within accepted 

norms of propriety, equity, fair play and a sense of justice. 

Accountability and transparency are key drivers to improve 

decision making and the rationale behind such decisions, 

which in turn creates stakeholders confidence. 

 

The Company’s governance framework is based on the 

following Principles:  

 Appropriate composition and size of the Board, with 

each member bringing in expertise in their respective 

domains;  

 Availability of information to the members of the 

Board and Board Committees to enable them 

discharge their fiduciary duties;  

 Timely disclosure of material operational and 

financial information to the stakeholders;  

 Systems and processes in place for internal control; 

and  

 Proper business conduct by the Board, senior 

management and Employees.  

 

2. Board of Directors 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company has optimum 

combination of No. of Executive and Independent Non 

Executive Directors. The Board comprises of three executive 

and three non executive Independent Directors. The 

Chairman of the Company is a Director. There are three 

independent Directors in the Company out of its total strength 

of six. Accordingly, composition of the Board is in 

conformity with the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulation, 2015. Except the Managing 

Director & Independent Directors all other Directors are 

liable to retire by rotation.  

 

Board Meeting 
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The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide 

on business strategies/policies, review the financial 

performance of the company and other matters. The notice 

of Board Meeting is given well in advance to all the 

Directors. The agenda of the Board Meetings is set by the 

Company Secretary in consultation with the Chairman & 

Managing Director of the Company. The agenda for the 

Board Meetings includes detailed notes on the items to be 

discussed at the Meeting to enable the Directors to take an 

informed decision. 

 

During the year under review, Twenty Three Board 

Meetings were held on 15.04.2016, 31.05.2016, 

08.06.2016, 16.06.2016, 25.06.2016, 28.06.2016, 

01.07.2016, 11.07.2016, 12.07.2016, 01.08.2016, 

10.08.2016, 26.08.2016, 14.09.2016, 26.09.2016, 

08.10.2016, 24.10.2016, 05.11.2016, 15.11.2016, 

03.12.2016, 22.12.2016, 20.02.2017, 09.03.2017, 

31.03.2017 and the time gap between two Meetings did not 

exceed 120 days. All statutory and other important items / 

information were placed before the Board for approval / 

review. 

 

The composition and category of the Board of Directors, 

attendance of the Directors at the Board Meetings and 

Annual General Meeting as also number of Directorship in 

other Indian Companies and membership of the Committee 

(Audit Committee, Stakeholder Grievance Committee and 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee) of the Board of 

such Companies are as follows:

Name of 

Directors & 

DIN 

Date of 

Appointment/ 

Resignation 

Category Attended 

the last 

AGM 

No. of 

Board 

Meeting

s 

attended 

No. of 

Shares held 

in the 

company (as 

on 

31.03.2017) 

No. of 

Directorship 

in other 

Companies 

No. of Committee 

Membership held 

 

As Chairman As 

Member 

 

 

Ashok Kumar 

Agarwal 

DIN: 

00793152 

23.08.1994 

Chairman & 

Managing 

Director 

Yes 22 455000 - - 2 

Ankit 

Agrawal DIN: 

00793035 

20.11.2008 

Whole Time 

Director 

Yes 20 569880 - - - 

Neha Agrawal 

DIN: 

07540311 

28.06.2016 

Executive 

Director 

Yes 17 110000 - - - 

Vitthal Das 

Agarwal DIN: 

1167878 

*28.06.2016 

Director No 6 - - - - 

Santosh 

Agarwal DIN: 

793092 

*28.06.2016 

Director No 6 - - - - 

Chandra 

Prakash 

Agarwal DIN: 

1007385 

*28.06.2016 

Director No 0 - 4 - - 

Suresh Kumar  

Jain DIN: 

07546087 

**01.08.2016 

Independent 

Non 

Executive 

Director 

Yes 3 - - 2 1 

Devi Shankar 

Goyal DIN: 

07559565 

**01.08.2016 

Independent 

Non 

Executive 

Director 

Yes 3 - - 1 2 

Radhika 

Agarwal DIN: 
**01.08.2016 

Independent 

Non 

Executive 

Yes 3 - - - 1 
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07579658 Director 

 

Notes: -  

1. Mr. Ashok Kumar Agarwal, Mr. Ankit Agarwal, Mrs. Neha Agarwal, Mr. Vitthal Das Agarwal, and Mrs. Santosh 

Agarwal are relatives as per section 2 (77) of the Companies Act, 2013.  

2. Brief profile of the Board Members is given in the website of the Company (www.rmcindia.in)  

3. Mr. Vitthal Das Agarwal, Mrs. Santosh Agarwal, Chandra Prakash Agarwal have resigned from directorship and Neha 

Agarwal appointed as director w.e.f. 28.06.2016 

5. **Mr. Suresh Kumar Jain, Mr. Devi Shankar Goyal, Mrs. Radhika Agarwal were appointed as Additional Independent 

Director w.e.f. 01.08.2016. 

5. No shares and/or convertible instruments have held by Independent Directors. 

 

Information Supplied to the Board among Others 

 

The Company provides the information as set out in 

Regulation 17 read with Part- A of Schedule II of Listing 

Regulation to the Board and the Board Committees to the 

extent it is applicable and relevant. Such information is 

submitted either as part of the agenda papers in advance of 

the respective meetings. The day to day business is 

conducted by the officers and the managers of the 

Company under the control & supervision of board of the 

Company. The Board generally meets every month to 

review and discuss the performance of the Company, its 

future plans, strategies and other pertinent issues relating to 

the Company. The Board performs the following specific 

functions in addition to its other functions: 

 Review, monitor and approve major financial and 

business strategies and corporate actions. 

 Assess critical risks facing the Company, review 

options for their mitigation. 

 Provide counsel on the selection, evaluation, 

development and compensation of senior 

management. 

 

The Company holds minimum of four Board Meetings in 

each year. Apart from the four pre-scheduled Board 

Meetings, additional Board Meetings will be convened by 

giving appropriate notice at any time to address the specific 

needs of the Company. The Board may also approve urgent 

matters by passing resolution by circulation. The meetings 

are held at the Company’s Registered / Corporate Office 

and the procedure is as follows: 

 

(a) The Chairman & Managing Director, Chief 

Financial Officer and Company Secretary in 

consultation with other concerned persons in the 

senior management, finalize the agenda papers for 

the Board Meetings. 

(b) Agenda papers are circulated to the Directors, in 

advance, in the defined Agenda format. All 

material information is incorporated in the 

Agenda Papers for facilitating meaningful, 

informed and focused discussions at the meeting. 

Where it is not practicable to attach any document 

to the Agenda, the same are placed on the table at 

the meeting with specific reference to this effect 

in the Agenda. 

(c) In special and exceptional circumstances, 

additional or supplementary item(s) on the agenda 

are permitted. Sensitive subject matters may be 

discussed at the meeting without written material 

being circulated in advance or at the meeting. 

(d) Board Support: The Company Secretary Attends 

Board/Board Committee meetings and advises on 

Compliances with applicable laws and 

governance. 

(e) The Company Secretary records the minutes of 

the proceedings of each Board and Committee 

Meetings. Draft minutes are circulated to all the 

members of the Board for their comments. The 

minutes of proceedings of a meeting are entered in 

the Minutes Book within 30 days from the 

conclusion of the meeting. 

(f) Post Meeting Mechanism: The important decision 

taken at the Board/Board Committee meetings are 

communicated to the concerned 

departments/divisions. 

 

Separate Meeting of Independent Directors 

 

As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under 

the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing (Obligation and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, a separate 

meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was 

held on March, 31 2017 to review the performance of Non-

independent Directors (including the Chairman) and the 

Board as whole. The Independent Directors also reviewed 

the quality, content and timeliness of the flow of 

information between the Management and the Board and 

its Committees which is necessary to effectively and 

reasonably perform and discharge their duties. The 

Independent Directors found the performance of Non-

Independent Directors (including Chairman) and the Board 

as well as flow of information between the Management 

and the Board to be satisfactory. All independent directors 

were present in the meeting. 

 

Induction & Training of Board Members 

(Familiarisation Programme for Independent 

Directors) 

 

Letter of Appointment(s) are issued to Independent 

Directors setting out in detail, the terms of appointment, 

duties, responsibilities and expected time commitments. 

Each newly appointed Director is taken through a formal 

induction program including the presentation from the 

Chairman cum Managing Director & Whole Time Director 

http://www.rmcindia.in/
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on the Company’s manufacturing, marketing, finance and 

other important aspects and information is available at 

www.rmcindia.in 

 

Evaluation of the Board’s Performance 

 

The Board has a formal mechanism for evaluating its 

performance and as well as that of its Committees and 

individual Directors, including the Chairman of the Board 

based on the criteria laid down by Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee. For more information please 

find Board's Performance Evaluation Policy in the 

annexure to the directors report.  

 

3. Audit Committee 

 

The Company has a Qualified and Independent Audit 

Committee. Mr. Suresh Kumar Jain is the Chairman of the 

Audit Committee. The Other Members of the Audit 

Committee are Mr. Devi Shankar Goyal and Mr. Ashok 

Kumar Agarwal. The Company Secretary of the Company 

acts as the Secretary of the Committee. 

 

Terms of Reference 

 

1. Oversight of the listed entity’s financial reporting 

process and the disclosure of its financial 

information to ensure that the financial statement 

is correct, sufficient and credible; 

2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration 

and terms of appointment of auditors of the listed 

entity; 

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any 

other services rendered by the statutory auditors; 

4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual 

financial statements and auditor's report thereon 

before submission to the board for approval; 

5. Reviewing, with the management, the half yearly 

financial statements before submission to the 

board for approval, with particular reference to; 

 matters required to be included in the 

director’s responsibility statement to be 

included in the board’s report in terms of 

clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of 

the Companies Act, 2013; 

 changes, if any, in accounting policies and 

practices and reasons for the same; 

 major accounting entries involving estimates 

based on the exercise of judgment by 

management; 

 significant adjustments made in the financial 

statements arising out of audit findings; 

 compliance with listing and other legal 

requirements relating to financial statements; 

 disclosure of any related party transactions; 

 modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report; 

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement 

of uses / application of funds raised through an 

issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, 

etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes 

other than those stated in the offer document / 

prospectus / notice and the report submitted by 

the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization 

of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and 

making appropriate recommendations to the 

board to take up steps in this matter; 

7. Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s 

independence and performance, and effectiveness 

of audit process; 

8. Approval or any subsequent modification of 

transactions of the listed entity with related 

parties; 

9. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

10. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed 

entity, wherever it is necessary; 

11. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk 

management systems; 

12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of 

statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the 

internal control systems; 

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit 

function, if any, including the structure of the 

internal audit department, staffing and seniority 

of the official heading the department, reporting 

structure coverage and frequency of internal 

audit; 

14. Discussion with internal auditors of any 

significant findings and follow up there on; 

15. The Audit Committee may call for the comments 

of the auditors about internal control systems, the 

scope of audit, including the observations of the 

auditors and review of financial statement before 

their submission to the Board and may also 

discuss any related issues with the internal and 

statutory auditors and the management of the 

company. 

16. Discussing with the statutory auditors before the 

audit commences, about the nature and scope of 

audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain 

any area of concern; 

17. Reviewing the findings of any internal 

investigations by the internal auditors into matters 

where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a 

failure of internal control systems of a material 

nature and reporting the matter to the board; 

18. Discussion with statutory auditors before the 

audit commences, about the nature and scope of 

audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain 

any area of concern; 

19. The Audit Committee shall have authority to 

investigate into any matter in relation to the items 

specified in section 177(4) of Companies Act 

2013 or referred to it by the Board. 

20. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in 

the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 

shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared 

dividends) and creditors; 

21. To review the functioning of the whistle blower 

mechanism; 
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22. Approving the appointment of the Chief Financial 

Officer (i.e. the whole time finance director or 

any other person heading the finance function) 

after assessing the qualifications, experience and 

background, etc., of the candidate; and; 

23. Audit committee shall oversee the vigil 

mechanism. 

24. Audit Committee will facilitate KMP/auditor(s) 

of the Company to be heard in its meetings.  

25. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned 

in the terms of reference of the audit committee 

or containing into SEBI Listing Regulations 

2015. 

 

Further, the Audit Committee shall mandatorily 

review the following: 

 

a) Management discussion and analysis of financial 

condition and results of operations; 

b) Statement of significant related party transactions 

(as defined by the audit committee),submitted by    

management; 

c) Management letters / letters of internal control 

weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; 

d) Internal audit reports relating to internal control 

weaknesses; and 

e) The appointment, removal and terms of 

remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be 

subject to review by the audit committee. 

f) Statement of deviations: 

 Quarterly statement of deviation(s) including 

report of monitoring agency, if applicable, 

submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of 

Regulation 32(1). 

 Annual statement of funds utilized for 

purposes other than those stated in the offer 

document/prospectus/notice in terms of 

Regulation 32(7). 

 

The Audit Committee has the following powers: 

 To investigate any activity within its terms of 

reference. 

 To seek information from any employee. 

 To obtain outside legal or other professional 

advice. 

 To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant 

expertise, if it considers necessary. 

 

At the invitation of the committee, the Statutory Auditor 

and the Secretary of the Company who is acting as 

Secretary to the Committee also, attended the Audit 

Committee Meetings to answer and clarify the queries 

raised at the committee meetings. During the Financial 

Year 2016-2017 the Committee after its formation met 3 

times on 10.08.2016, 24.10.2016 & 15.02.2017  

 

Composition & Meetings 

 

Name of 

Directors 

Position held 

in the 

No. of meetings held 

during the year 

Committee 

  Held Attended 

Mr. Suresh 

Kumar 

Jain* 

Chairman 3 3 

Mr. Devi 

Shankar 

Goyal* 

Member 3 3 

Mr. Ashok 

Kumar 

Agarwal 

Member 3 3 

 

*Mr. Suresh Kumar Jain, Mr. Devi Shankar Goyal, were 

appointed as Additional Independent Director w.e.f. 

01.08.2016 

 

4. Nomination And Remuneration Committee 

 

Terms of Reference 

 

 Identify persons who are qualified to become 

directors and may be appointed in senior 

management in accordance with the criteria laid 

down, recommend to the Board their appointment 

and removal and shall carry out evaluation of 

every director’s performance; 

 Formulate the criteria for determining the 

qualifications, positive attributes and 

independence of a director and recommend to the 

Board a policy relating to the remuneration for 

directors, KMPs and other employees; 

 Formulation of criteria for evaluation of 

performance of independent directors and the 

board of directors; 

 Devising a policy on diversity of board of 

directors; 

 Whether to extend or continue the term of 

appointment of the independent director, on the 

basis of the report of performance evaluation of 

independent directors; 

 Determine our Company’s policy on specific 

remuneration package for the Managing Director / 

Executive Director including pension rights; 

 Decide the salary, allowances, perquisites, 

bonuses, notice period, severance fees and 

increment of Executive Directors; 

 Define and implement the Performance Linked 

Incentive Scheme (including ESOP of the 

Company) and evaluate the performance and 

determine the amount of incentive of the 

Executive Directors for that purpose. 

 Decide the amount of Commission payable to the 

Whole time Directors; 

 Review and suggest revision of the total 

remuneration package of the Executive Directors 

keeping in view the performance of the Company, 

standards prevailing in the industry, statutory 

guidelines etc; and 

 To formulate and administer the Employee Stock 

Option Scheme 
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During the Financial Year 2016-2017 the Committee, after 

its formation, met 2 times on 01.08.2016 & 10.08.2016. 

The Composition and attendance of the members at the 

Committee meetings were as follow: 

  

Composition & Meeting  

 

Name of 

Directors 

Position held 

in the 

Committee 

No. of meetings 

during the F.Y. 2016-

17 

  Held Attended 

Mr. Suresh 

Kumar Jain* 

Chairman 2 2 

Mr. Devi 

Shankar 

Goyal* 

Member 2 2 

Mrs. Radhika 

Agarwal* 

Member 2 2 

**Mr. Suresh Kumar Jain, Mr. Devi Shankar Goyal, Mrs. 

Radhika Agarwal were appointed as Additional 

Independent Director w.e.f. 01.08.2016 

 

Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent 

Directors- 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid 

down the criteria for performance evaluation of 

Independent Directors which are as under- 

 

Areas of Evaluation 

1. Attendance and participations in the Meetings 

2. Raising of concerns to the Board 

3. Safeguard of confidential information 

4. Rendering independent, unbiased opinion and 

resolution of issues at meetings 

5. Initiative in terms of new ideas and planning for the 

Company 

6. Safeguarding interest of whistle-blowers under vigil 

mechanism 

7. Timely inputs on the minutes of the meetings of the 

Board and Committee’s, if any  

 

5. Remuneration of Directors 

 

(A) The Non - executive Directors does not have any 

other material pecuniary relationship or transactions 

with the Company during the year.  

(B) Criteria of making payments to non-executive 

directors are available on company website: 

www.rmcindia.in. 

(C) Disclosures with respect to remuneration:  

Name of Director Business Relationship 

with the company 

Remuneration paid during 2016-17 (Amount In Rs.)  

All element of 

remuneration 

package i.e. 

salary, benefit, 

bonuses, pensions 

etc. 

Fixed 

components and 

performance 

linked incentives 

along with 

performance 

criteria 

Service 

contract, 

Notice Period, 

severance fee 

Stock 

options 

details, if 

any 

Mr. Ashok Kumar 

Agarwal 

Chairman & Managing 

Director 

10,75,000 - - - 

Mr. Ankit Agrawal Whole Time Director 9,50,000 - - - 

Mrs. Neha Agrawal* Executive 5,25,000 - - - 

Mr. Vitthal Das 

Agarwal* 

Director - - - - 

Mrs. Santosh Agrawal* Director - - - - 

Mr.  Chandra Prakash 

Agarwal* 

Director - - - - 

Mr. Suresh Kumar 

Jain** 

Independent Non 

Executive Director 

- - - - 

Mr. Devi Shankar 

Goyal** 

Independent Non 

Executive Director 

- - - - 

Mrs. Radhika Agarwal** Independent Non - - - - 

http://www.rmcindia.in/
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1. *Mrs. Santosh Agrawal and Mr. Vitthal Das Agarwal 

and Chandra Prakash Agarwal have resigned from their 

directorship and Neha Agarwal appointed as director w.e.f. 

28.06.2016  

2. **Mr. Suresh Kumar Jain, Mr. Devi Shankar Goyal, 

Mrs. Radhika Agarwal were appointed as Additional 

Independent Director w.e.f. 01.08.2016 

3. Mr. Ashok Kumar Agarwal, Mr. Ankit Agarwal, Mrs. 

Neha Agarwal, Mr. Vitthal Das Agarwal, and Mrs. Santosh 

Agarwal are relatives as per section 2 (77) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

4. The appointment is subject to termination/resignation by 

giving one month notice in writing on either side or the 

notice period may be waived at the discretion of 

management.  

 

6. Stakeholders Relationship Committee  

 

The Board has constituted Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee to approve the matters relating to transfer of 

shares, change in address, issue of duplicate share 

certificates, non-receipt of Annual Reports, non-receipt of 

dividend and review and redressed of Shareholders’ / 

Investors’ grievances. Sufficient powers have been 

delegated to this Committee.  The power of approving 

transfer of securities as well as or rematerialization of 

securities has been delegated to the Company Secretary. 

 

Composition & Meeting 

 

The Committee met once on 31.03.2017 during the year 

2016-2017. The Composition and attendance of the 

members at the Committee meetings were as follows: 

 

Name of 

Directors 

Position held 

in the 

Committee 

No. of meetings held 

during the F.Y. 2016-

17 

  Held  Attended 

Mr. Devi Shankar 

Goyal 

Chairman  1 1 

Mr. Suresh 

Kumar Jain 

Member 1 1 

Mr. Ashok 

Kumar Agarwal 

Member 1 1 

 

Miss Priyanka Gattani Company Secretary of the Company 

is the Compliance Officer of the Company. 

In the Financial Year 2016-2017, the Company has not 

received any investor complaint. 

In the Financial Year 2016-2017, the Company has no 

complaint which is not solved to the satisfaction of 

shareholder. 

In the Financial Year 2016-2017, the Company has no 

pending investor complaint. 

 

7. General Body Meetings 

 

Location and Time of last three Annual General Meetings were: 

 

Financial Year Venue Date & Time Special Resolution 

Passed for 

2015-16 7 Km. From Chaksu, Khotkawda Road, 

Village Badodiya, Tehsil Chaksu, Tonk 

Road, Jaipur Rajasthan 303901 India 

8th September, 2016 at 

11.00A.M. 

YES to fix remuneration 

of ED 

2014-15 B-11 (B & C), Malviya Industrial Area, 

Jaipur-302017 

30th September, 2015 at 

11.00A.M. 

NONE 

2013-14 B-11 (B & C), Malviya Industrial Area, 

Jaipur-302017 

30th September, 2014 at 

11.00A.M. 

NONE 

 

Special Resolution passed last year through postal ballot – 

details of voting pattern and procedure thereof: No 

Special resolution was passed through postal ballot during the 

last year. 

 

Special Resolution proposed to be conducted through 

postal ballot: Yes two Special Resolution proposed to be 

conducted through postal ballot. 

Procedure for postal ballot: Complete resolution and 

procedure have been sent to shareholder separately. 

 

Extraordinary General Meeting  

The Company has held two Extraordinary General Meetings 

during the F.Y. 2016-17 on 08.06.2016 and 16.07.2016. 

 

8. Means of Communication                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

 

The Company has a Web Site i.e. www.rmcindia.in and 

follow practice to uploads the Half Year/and Annual Results 

regularly on their website. Your company being listed on 

SME platform of BSE exempt from the requirement of 

publishing results in newspaper under SEBI (LODR) 

Regulation, 2015. The Web site of the Company doesn’t 

displays official news releases. No presentation has been 

made to Institutional Investors / Analysts by the Company. 

Executive Director 
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The Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) forms 

part of the Annual Report. 

 

9. General Shareholders Information 

a. Annual General Meeting- Date, Time and Venue: 

Friday, September 29th , 2017 at 11.00 A. M. at 7 Km. 

From Chaksu, Khotkawda Road, Village Badodiya, 

Tehsil Chaksu, Tonk Road, Jaipur Rajasthan 303901 

India 

b. Financial Year: The Company Financial Year cover 

period from April 1, 2016 to March 31, 2017. 

c. Dividend Payment Date: No Dividend has been 

recommended by the Board of Directors for the year 

under review. The Company has not declared any 

dividend so far hence there is not any unpaid / 

unclaimed dividend’s 

d. The name and address of each stock exchange(s) at 

which the listed entity's securities are listed and a 

confirmation about payment of annual listing fee 

to each of such stock exchange(s): SME platform of 

BSE, BSE Limited, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal 

Street, Mumbai-01. The Company has paid listing 

fees, as applicable for the financial year 2017-2018 to 

the BSE. 

e. Stock Code: BSE-540358 

f. Market Price Data- high, low during each month 

in financial year 2016-17: 

Month Stock Prices 

  

Volume 

(Nos.) High Low 

Apr-16 - - - 

May-16 - - - 

Jun-16 - - - 

Jul-16 - - - 

Aug-16 - - - 

Sep-16 - - - 

Oct-16 - - - 

Nov-16 - - - 

Dec-16 - - - 

Jan-17 - - - 

Feb-17 - - - 

Mar-17 2820000 46 29 

*Source: www.bseindia.com 

** Company get listed on 14.03.2017 

 

g. Performance in comparison to broad-based 

indices such as BSE SENSEX, CRISIL Index etc: 

 

Below comparison is with BSE SENSEX 

 

 
 

h. In case the securities are suspended from trading, 

the Directors Report shall explain there as on 

thereof: Your company scrip never been suspended.  

 

i. Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents: 
Link Intime India Private Limited, C-101, 1st Floor, 

247 Park, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg,  Vikhroli (West) 

Mumbai Maharastra- 400083 Website: 

www.linkintime.co.in, 022-49186000 

 

 

j.  Share Transfer System: The shares of the company 

are compulsory traded in dematerialised Form. For 

transfer of Share Company have appointed a common 

agency LinkIntime India Private Limited, C-101, 1st 

Floor, 247 Park, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg,  Vikhroli 

(West) Mumbai Maharastra- 400083 Website: 

www.linkintime.co.in Website: www.linkintime.co.in 

for demat as well as physical transfer. The company has 

also entered into agreement with NSDL & CDSL so as 

to provide member as opportunity to hold and trade 

equity shres of the company in electronic mode. 

Physical transfers are affected with due care and well 

within the statutory period. 

 

The application for transfer, transmission and 

transposition of shares are received by the Company at 

its Registered Office or at the Office of its Registrar and 

Share Transfer Agents – Link Intime India Private 

Limited  

Following is the procedure for transfer of physical share 

certificates:- 

 

1) Entry of the share certificates in the computer on 

receipt thereof in the office. 

2) Scrutiny of transfer deeds. 

3) Tallying of transferor’s signatures with the specimen 

signature available with the Registrar and Share 

Transfer Agent. 

4) Data entry of transfer deeds. 

5) Preparation of objection memos and notices in respect 

of shares rejected for transfer. 

6) Generation of checklist for valid and invalid transfer 

deeds. 
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7) Correction of data in the computer system on the basis 

of changes marked in the check list. 

8) Approval of transfer / transmission / split applications 

in the Shareholder’s / Investor’s Grievance 

Committee meeting. 

9) Recording of transfer of shares in the computer 

system. 

10) Endorsement and signatures on the reverse side of 

share certificates. 

11) Generation of covering letters for the transferred 

share certificates and dispatch of transferred share 

certificates, objection memos and notices by 

registered post. 

 

Distribution of shareholding & Shareholding Patterns 

on 31.03.2017: 

(a) Distribution of shareholding 

Range Total 

No. of 

share 

holders 

% of 

Total 

Holders 

Total 

Holding 

% of 

Share 

holding 

1-5000 2 0.8475 1750 0.0034 

10001-20000 3 1.2712 44960 0.0883 

20001-30000 3 1.2712 76420 0.1501 

30001-40000 152 64.4068 6078010 11.9359 

40001-50000 2 0.8475 86070 0.1690 

50001-100000 24 10.1695 1913930 3.7586 

100001 & 

above 

50 21.1864 42720860 83.8947 

  236 100.00 5092200 100.00 

 

(b) Shareholding Pattern as on 31.03.2017 

 Particulars No. of Shares 

held 

% of 

shareholdin

g 

Promoters 2961960 58.17 

Financial 

Institutions, Banks 

and Mutual Funds 

0 0 

Trusts / Clearing 

Members/HUF 
511769 10.05 

Pvt. Corporate 

Bodies 

582801 11.45 

Indian Public 979670 19.23 

NRIs / OCBs 56000 1.1 

Total 5092200 100.00 

 

k. Dematerialization of Shares and liquidity: The 

Company’s shares are currently traded only in 

dematerialized form at The Bombay Stock Exchange 

Ltd. To facilitate trading in dematerialized form, the 

Company has tied up arrangements with both the 

present depositories’ viz. National Securities Depository 

Ltd. (NSDL) & Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. 

(CDSL). Shareholders can open Demat Account with 

any Depository participant registered with any of these 

depositories. As on 31st March, 2017 about 99.73 % of 

the Company’s shares were held in dematerialized form. 

Following is the procedure for dematerialization of 

share:- 

1) Entry of the share certificates and the 

dematerialization request form in the computer. 

2) Scrutiny of the share certificates and the 

dematerialization request form in the computer. 

3) Tallying of signature of the shareholders on the 

dematerialization request form with the specimen 

signature available with the Registrar and Share 

Transfer Agent. 

4) Data entry of dematerialization request form. 

5) Generation of checklist. 

6) Change of shares from physical to demat mode. 

7) Electronically releasing the shares in favour of NSDL 

and CDSL, as the case may be. 

Outstanding Global Depository Receipts or 

American Depository Receipts or warrants or any 

convertible instruments, conversion date and likely 

impact on equity: There were no outstanding 

GDRs//ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments. 

 

l. Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and 

hedging activities: Nil 

 

m. Plant locations: 7 Km. from Chaksu, Khotkawda Road, 

Village Badodiya, Tehsil Chaksu, Tonk Road, Jaipur-

303901 Rajasthan  

 

n. Address for correspondence: For any assistance 

regarding dematerialization/ rematerialization of Shares, 

Transfer / Transmission of shares, change of address or 

any other query relating to shares, the investors may 

please contact with the Registrar & Share Transfer 

Agent of the Company at the following address: 

 

Link Intime India Private Limited: C-101, 1st Floor, 

247 Park, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg,  Vikhroli (West) 

Mumbai Maharastra- 400083 Website: 

www.linkintime.co.in 

 

For any other query the investors may please contact 

to: Ms. Priyanka Gattani, Company Secretary RMC 

Switchgears Limited Regd. Office: 7 Km. from Chaksu, 

Khotkawda Road, Village Badodiya, Tehsil Chaksu, 

Tonk Road, Jaipur Rajasthan 303901 India  

Corporate Office: B-11 (B&C), Malviya Industrial 

Area, Jaipur-302017, cs@rmcindia.in, 0141-4400222. 

 

10.  Disclosures 

a. Disclosures on materially significant related party 

transactions that may have potential conflict with 

the interests of listed entity at large: During the 

financial year ended 31st March, 2017 there were no 

materially significant related party transactions that may 

have potential conflict with the interests of the 

Company at large. 

http://www.linkintime.co.in/
mailto:cs@rmcindia.in
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b. Details of non-compliance by the listed entity, 

penalties, strictures imposed on the listed entity by 

stock exchange(s) or the board or any statutory 

authority, on any matter related to capital markets, 

during the last three years: Neither were any penalties 

imposed, nor were any strictures passed by Stock 

Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority on any 

capital market related matters during the last three years 

  

c. Details of establishment of vigil mechanism whistle 

blower policy, and affirmation that no personnel 

have been denied access to the audit committee: The 

Company has announced Whistle Blower policy and no 

personnel of the company have been denied access to 

the Audit Committee. 

 

d. Details of compliance with mandatory requirements 

and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements: 

The Company has complied with the mandatory 

requirements. The Company may have also adopted 

some non-mandatory requirements. 

 

Web link where policy for determining ‘material’ 

subsidiaries is disclosed: The Company has framed a 

Material Subsidiary Policy and the same is placed on 

the Company’s website www.rmcindia.in. 

 

e. Web link where policy on dealing with related party 

transactions: The company has framed Related Party 

Transaction Policy and is placed on the Company’s 

website www.rmcindia.in. 

f. Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity 

hedging activities: During the financial year ended 31st 

March, 2017 the company did not engage in commodity 

hedging activities. 

 

11.  Non-compliance of any requirement of corporate 

governance report of sub paras (2) to (10) above, with 

reasons thereof shall be disclosed:  

There has been no instance of non-compliance of any 

requirement of corporate governance report. 

 

12.  Extent company has adopted the discretionary 

requirements as specified in part e of schedule ii of 

SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015: 

 

A. The Board 

Since the Company does not have a Non-Executive 

Chairman, it does not maintain such office. 

 

B. Shareholder Rights 

Half yearly / Annual Financial Results are forwarded to the 

Stock Exchanges and uploaded on the website of the 

Company. 

 

C.  Modified opinion(s) in audit report 

During the year under review, there was Emphasis of Matter 

in the Auditors’ Report on the Company’s financial 

statements which is explain in boards report 

 

D. Separate posts of Chairperson and Chief Executive 

Officer  

The company has not appointed CEO so post of chairman 

of the company is separate. 

 

E.  Reporting of Internal Auditor 

The company has appointed internal auditor w.e.f. 

17.04.2017 and is a permanent invitee to the Audit 

Committee Meeting and will attends the Meetings for the 

financial year 2017-18 for reporting their findings of the 

internal audit to the Audit Committee Members. 

 

13.  The disclosures of the compliance with corporate 

governance requirements specified in regulation 17 to 

27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of 

regulation 46 shall be made in the section on corporate 

governance of the annual report:  
The company, being a SME Listed Company of BSE Ltd, is 

exempted from the compliance of corporate governance 

requirements as provided under regulations 17 to 27 and 

clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and 

para C, D and E of Schedule V.)  

 

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment 

The Company has followed the treatment laid down in the 

Accounting Standards prescribed by the Institute of Chartered 

Accountants of India, in the preparation of financial 

statements. There is a Emphasis of matter in the Company’s 

financial statements for the year under review. 

 

Declaration 

A signed declaration by the Managing director stating that the 

members of board of directors and senior management 

personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct 

of board of directors and senior management is been forming 

part of annexure to the directors report. 

 

Demat Suspense Account/Unclaimed Suspense Account: 

NA 

 

By the order of the Board 

For RMC Switchgears Limited 

(Formerly known as RMC Switch Gears Ltd.) 

 

Ashok Kumar Agarwal 

DIN: 00793152 

Chairman & Managing Director 

Place: Jaipur 

Dated: 22.08.2017  
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE  

To 

The Members  

RMC Switchgears Ltd. 

(Formerly known as RMC Switch Gears Ltd.) 

Jaipur 

 

1. We have examined the compliance of conditions of 

Corporate Governance by RMC Switchgears Ltd. for 

the year ended on 31st March, 2017 as stipulated in 

SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 

2. The Compliance of conditions of Corporate 

Governance is the responsibility of the Management. 

Our examination was limited to the procedures and 

implementation thereof adopted by the Company for 

ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate 

Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of 

the opinion on the financial statements of the 

Company.    

3. In our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us, we certify 

that the Company has complied with the conditions of 

Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above 

mentioned SEBI (LODR) regulation, 2015. 

4. We state that no investor grievance is pending for a 

period exceeding one month against the company as 

per the records maintained by the shareholders / 

Investors grievance committee.  

5. We further state that such compliance is neither an 

assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 

the efficiency or effectiveness with which the 

management has conducted the affairs of the 

Company. 

 

For Deepika Jain & Associates 

(Company Secretaries)  

 

(Deepika Jain) 

Proprietor 

M. No.: A41190  

CP: 16994   

Place: Jaipur 

Date: 22.08.2017 

 

CEO’S/ CFO’S CERTIFICATION 

We, Ashok Kumar Agarwal, Chairman & Managing Director 

and Shiv Charan Maheshwari, Chief Financial Officer of 

RMC Switchgears Limited, to the best of our knowledge and 

belief, certify that: 

 

a) We have reviewed Financial Statements and the cash 

flow statement for the year ended on 31st March, 2017 

and that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

i) These statements do not contain any materially 

untrue statement or omit any material fact or 

contain statements that might be misleading. 

ii) These statements together present a true and fair 

view of the Company’s affairs and are in 

compliance with existing accounting Standards, 

applicable laws and regulations.  

b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no 

transactions entered into by the Company during the 

year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the 

company’s code of conduct. 

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and 

maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and 

that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal 

control systems of the Company pertaining to financial 

reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the 

audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation 

of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware 

and the steps we have to be taken to rectify these 

deficiencies.    

d) We have indicated to the auditors and the audit 

committee; 

i) Significant Changes in internal control, if any, over 

financial reporting, during the year. 

ii) significant changes in accounting policies, if any, 

during the year and that the same    have been 

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and  

iii) Instances of significant fraud of which we have 

become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of 

the management or an employee having a significant 

role in the company’s internal control system over 

financial reporting.  

  

This certificate has been issued in compliance with the 

provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 

 

By the order of the Board 

For RMC Switchgears Limited 

(Formerly known as RMC Switch Gears Ltd.) 

 

Ashok Kumar Agarwal       Shiv Charan Maheshwari 

DIN: 00793152        Chief Financial Officer 

Chairman & Managing Director       

 

Place: Jaipur 

Date: 22.08.2017 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To the Members of RMC SWITCHGEARS LTD.  

 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 

“RMC SWITCHGEARS LTD.”, which comprise the 

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the Statement of Profit 

and Loss and, Cash Flow Statement for the year ended, and a 

summary of significant accounting policies and other 

explanatory information. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial 

Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 

matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ( 

“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial 

statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 

position, financial performance and cash flows of the 

Company in accordance with the Accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, including the accounting 

standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with 

Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This 

responsibility also includes the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 

Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for 

preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregularities; 

selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 

making judgment and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 

internal financial control, that were operating effectively for 

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 

financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 

statements based on our audit. 

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the 

accounting and auditing standards and matters which are 

required to be included in the audit report under the 

provisions of the Act and Rules made there under and the 

order u/s 143(11) of the Act. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 

Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those 

Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 

and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial statements are free from material 

misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 

judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 

considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s 

preparation of the financial statements that give a true and 

fair view in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on whether the company has in place 

an adequate internal financial control system over financial 

reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls. An 

audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the 

accounting estimates made by management, as well as 

evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 

statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion. 

 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 

financial statements, give the information required by the Act 

in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted 

in India: 

(a) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of 

the Company as at March 31, 2017; and 

(b) In the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the 

profit for the year ended  on that date. 

(c) In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows 

for the year ended on that date. 

 

Emphasis of Matter: 

We draw your attention to following notes to the financial 

statements: 

i) Providing deferred Tax Liability at the rate prescribed 

u/s 115JB of the Income Tax Act, 1961 as described in 

Note No. 1(vi)(b) of the Financial Statements,  in place of  

regular rate of income tax, as prescribed under  

Accounting Standard-22   

ii) Loss/Gain on  Fire  Insurance `Claim under settlement’ 

as on 31/03/2017 would be accounted for  on settlement   

by Insurance Company,  as described in Note No. 1(xiv) 

of the Financial Statements.  

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 

Order, 2016 (“the order”) issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 

section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure – A”, 

a statements on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 

& 4 of the order. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report 

that:  

 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and 

explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by 

law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books. 

c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and 

Cash Flows Statement dealt with by this Report are in 

agreement with the books of account. 
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d. In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit 

and Loss and Cash Flow Statement comply with the 

Accounting Standards referred to in Section 133 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e. On the basis of written representations received from 

the directors as on March 31, 2017, and taken on 

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 

is disqualified as on March 31, 2017, from being 

appointed as a director in terms of Sub Section (2) of 

Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls over financial reporting of the company and 

the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 

our separate report in “Annexure – B”; and  

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the 

Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 

opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us : 

 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending 

litigations on its financial position in its financial 

statements. 

ii. The Company has made provision, as required 

under the applicable law or accounting standards, 

for material foreseeable losses, if any, and as 

required on long-term contracts including 

derivative contracts.  

iii. The Company is not required to transfer any 

amount to the Investors Education and Protection 

Fund. 

iv. The Company has provided requisite disclosures in 

its financial statements as to holdings as well as 

dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period 

from 8TH November, 2016 to 30th   December, 

2016 and these are in accordance with the books of 

accounts maintained by Company. Refer Note 14.1 

to the financial statements 

 

For SARASWAT & COMPANY 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm’s registration number: 004846C   

                            

       

CA PRAVIN SARASWAT  

Partner 

Membership number: 072679  

Jaipur Dated: 27/05/2017                                                   

 

 

Annexure – A to the Auditor’s Report 

 

The Annexure referred to in the Independent Auditors’ 

Report to the members of the company on the Financial 

Statements for the year ended 31st March 2017, we report 

that: 

 

1. (a) The company is maintaining proper records showing 

full particulars, including quantitative details &       

situation of Fixed Assets;    

 

(b) These fixed assets have been physically verified by 

the management at reasonable intervals; No such material 

discrepancies were noticed on such verification.  

 

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties arc held in the 

name of the company except Leasehold / Freehold Lands 

which are in the old name of company i.e. RFH Metal 

Castings Private Ltd.  

 

2. The Physical Verification of Inventory has been 

conducted at reasonable intervals by the management    

and no  material discrepancies were noticed; 

 

3. The company has not granted any loans, secured or 

unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability 

Partnerships or other parties covered in the register 

maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 

2013. 

 

4. In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security 

all the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with. 

 

5. The company has not accepted deposits.  The directives 

issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of 

sections 73 to 76   and  other relevant provisions of the 

Companies Act, 20 l3 and   the rules framed there under 

are complied with.  

 

6. The maintenance of Cost Records has been   specified by 

the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 

l48 of the Companies Act, 2013 and such accounts and 

records have been so made and maintained by the 

Company.  

 

7. (a)  The company is generally regular in depositing 

undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, 

employees' state insurance, income tax, sales-tax, service 

tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess 

and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities

 

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of wealth tax, duty of customs and 

cess which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. However, the following dues of 

Excise are under dispute:  

 

Name of Statute Nature of dues Amount (in 

Rs.)  (Net of 

Deposit)  

Period to which 

amount relates 

Forum where Dispute is 

pending 

Central Excise 

Act, 1944 

Excise Duty & 

Penalty 

126629/- March, 2011 Commissioner (Appeals), Jaipur 
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Central Excise 

Act, 1944 

Excise Duty & 

Penalty 

4119828/- October, 2012 to 

December, 2015 

Commissioner (Appeals), Jaipur 

 

8. The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or 

borrowing to a financial institution, bank, government or 

dues to debenture holders. 

 

9. Based on examination of books of accounts and 

information and explanation given to us, the money raised 

during the year by way of initial public offer and term 

loans were applied for the purposes for which those are 

raised. 

 

10. No Fraud by the Company or fraud on the company by its 

Officers or employees has been noticed or reported during 

the year. 

 

11. The Managerial Remuneration has been paid and 

provided in accordance with requisite approvals mandated 

by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of 

the Companies Act, 2013.  

 

12. The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence 

reporting under clause 12 of the CARO, 2016 Order is not 

applicable. 

 

13. All transactions with the related parties are in compliance 

with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where 

applicable and the details have been disclosed in the 

Financial Statements etc. as required by the applicable 

accounting standards. 

 

14. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or 

private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 

debentures during the year. 

 

15. The Company has not entered into any non-cash 

transaction with the Directors or person connected with 

him under the provisions of section 192 of Companies 

Act, 2013. 

 

16. According to the information and explanation given to us, 

the company is not required to be registered under section 

45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

 

For SARASWAT & COMPANY 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm’s registration number: 004846C   

                            

CA PRAVIN SARASWAT  

Partner 

Membership number: 072679  

Jaipur Dated: 27/05/2017                                                   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Annexure – B to the Auditor’s Report 
 

Report on the Internal Financial Control under clause (i) 

of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 

2013 (“the Act”) 

 

We have audited the Internal Financial Control over 

Financial Reporting of RMC SWITCHGEARS LTD. (“the 

Company”) as on 31 March, 2017 in conjunction with our 

audit of the financial statements of the company for the year 

ended on that date. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 

Controls  

 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing 

and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 

internal control over financial reporting criteria established 

by the Company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). 

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 

conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s 

policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 

of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 

reliable financial information, as required under the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's 

internal financial controls over financial reporting based on 

our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 

Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards 

on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 

under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 

extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 

both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, 

both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 

we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 

was established and maintained and if such controls operated 

effectively in all material respects. 

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

system over financial reporting and their operating 

effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over 

financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 

internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
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the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 

control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 

depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error.  

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system 

over financial reporting. 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Control over Financial 

Reporting 

 

A company's internal financial control over financial 

reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 

the preparation of financial statements for external purposes 

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

A company's internal financial control over financial 

reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) 

pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 

detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 

necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 

and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 

made only in accordance with authorisations of management 

and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 

unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 

assets that could have a material effect on the financial 

statements. 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 

over Financial Reporting 

 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial 

controls over financial reporting, including the possibility 

of collusion or improper management override of controls, 

material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 

not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 

internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 

periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 

control over financial reporting may become inadequate 

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 

compliance with the policies or procedures may 

deteriorate. 

 

Opinion 

 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, 

an adequate internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting and such internal financial controls over 

financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 

March 2017, based on the internal control over financial 

reporting criteria established by the Company considering 

the essential components of internal control stated in the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 

Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India. 

 

For SARASWAT & COMPANY 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm’s registration number: 004846C   

                            

CA PRAVIN SARASWAT  

Partner 

Membership number: 072679  

Jaipur, Dated: 27/05/2017 
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RMC SWITCHGEARS LIMITED 

(Formerly Known as RMC Switch Gears Limited) 

(CIN:L27310RJ1994PLC008698) 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2017 

(AMOUNT IN RS.) 

  NOTES As  At March 31, 2017 As  At  March 31, 2016 

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  

  1) Shareholders’ Funds       

    (a) Share Capital 2 50,922,000.00 10,810,500.00 

    (b) Reserves and Surplus 3 87,726,866.73 91,786,673.90 

          138,648,866.73 102,597,173.90 

  2) Non-Current Liabilities       

    (a) Long Term Borrowings 4 182,691,298.95 168,105,902.20 

    (b) Deferred Tax Liability  - 8,791,347.21 9,337,834.65 

    (c) Other  Long Term Liabilities 5 1,144,621.13 3,380,621.13 

    (d)  Long Term Provisions  6 1,052,123.00      - 

          193,679,390.29 180,824,357.98 

  3) Current Liabilities       

    (a) Short Term Borrowings  7 89,101,941.79 90,520,388.03 

    (b) Trade Payables  - 110,880,912.65 88,706,171.93 

    (c) Other Current Liabilities 8 60,544,699.99 29,316,488.42 

    (d) Short Term Provisions -      -      - 

          260,527,554.43 208,543,048.38 

  TOTAL   592,855,811.45 491,964,580.26 

II. ASSETS 

  1) Non-Current Assets       

    (a) Fixed Assets 9     

    i) Tangible Assets   232,595,782.43 229,611,535.95 

    ii) Intangible Assets   986,121.76 89,154.16 

    iii) Capital Work in Progress   229,820.22      -  

          233,811,724.41 229,700,690.11 

    (b) Non-Current Investments        -      - 

    (c) Long Term Loans and Advances 10 4,870,558.00 107,289.00 

    (d) Other Non-Current Assets 11 5,808,172.20 1,124,369.40 

          10,678,730.20 1,231,658.40 

  2) Current Assets       

    (a) Current Investments -       -             -    

    (b) Inventories  12 32,503,286.80 49,909,122.21 

    (c) Trade Receivables  13 235,549,990.04 161,758,651.20 

    (d) Cash and Bank Balances 14 31,098,915.50 23,681,029.37 

    (e) Short Term Loans and Advances  15 21,599,097.72 10,985,094.36 

    (f) Other Current Assets 16 27,614,066.78 14,698,334.62 

          348,365,356.84 261,032,231.76 

  TOTAL   592,855,811.45 491,964,580.26 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our separate report of even date      For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 

FOR SARASWAT & COMPANY      

Chartered Accountants       Ashok Kumar Agarwal  

FRN 004846C        Chairman Cum Managing Director   

          (DIN: 793152) 

              

CA Pravin Saraswat     Shiv Charan Maheshwari Priyanka Gattani  

Partner       Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary  

Membership Number:  072679 

Jaipur, Dated 27th May, 2017 
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RMC SWITCHGEARS LIMITED 

(Formerly Known as RMC Switch Gears Limited) 

(CIN:L27310RJ1994PLC008698) 

  STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2017  

 (AMOUNT IN RS.)  

 PARTICULARS  
 

NOTES  

 FOR YEAR  ENDED 

31.03.2017  

 FOR YEAR  ENDED 

31.03.2016  

        

 I.   Revenue from Operations(Gross)  17             558,967,743.17              607,476,471.71  

   Less: Excise Duty                  51,775,130.56                53,120,326.61  

   Revenue from Operations(Net)                 507,192,612.61              554,356,145.10  

 II.   Other Income   18               16,524,884.03                   4,177,885.73  

 III.   Total Revenue ( I + II)                523,717,496.64              558,534,030.83  

          

 IV.   Expenses         

  

 

a)   Cost of Materials consumed  19             161,475,594.56              176,183,055.63  

  

 

b)   Changes in inventories of Finished Goods & Work-in-Progress  20               18,506,502.58  9,078,876.69 

  

 

c)  

 Purchases of  Finished Goods, Trading item and Materials & 

Labour  for works contract    
              44,156,294.43                83,090,182.07  

  

 

d)   Employee Benefits Expenses  21               20,914,979.92                18,892,733.00  

  

 

e)   Finance Costs  22               42,659,814.99                46,147,596.93  

  

 

f)   Depreciation and Amortization Expenses                  15,259,364.73                13,387,370.85  

  

 

g)   Other expenses  23             205,975,740.04              200,224,574.20  

   Total Expenses (a to g)                508,948,291.25              547,004,389.36  

          

 V.   Profit Before Tax (III - IV)    14,769,205.39               11,529,641.47  

 VI.   Tax Expenses        

  

 

a)   Current Tax     3,011,270.00                  2,196,970.00  

     Income Tax Related to Previous Year     153,791.00 -  

     Less:  MAT Credit Entitlement    (3,165,061.00) (2,196,970.00) 

  

 

b)   Deferred Tax Liability   30 (546,487.44)                  9,337,834.65  

 VII.   Profit (Loss) for the year  (V-VI)    15,315,692.83 2,191,806.82 

 

VIII.   Earning per equity share: (Face Value of Rs.10 each)   27     

  

 

a)   Basic     3.50                                0.51  

  

 

b)   Diluted     3.50                                0.51  
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our separate report of even date      For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 

FOR SARASWAT & COMPANY      

Chartered Accountants       Ashok Kumar Agarwal  

FRN 004846C        Chairman Cum Managing Director   

          (DIN: 793152) 

              

 

CA Pravin Saraswat     Shiv Charan Maheshwari Priyanka Gattani  

Partner       Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary  

Membership Number:  072679 

Jaipur, Dated 27th May, 2017 
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RMC SWITCHGEARS LIMITED 

(Formerly Known as RMC Switch Gears Limited) 

(CIN:L27310RJ1994PLC008698) 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR  ENDED  ON  31/03/2017 

      Year ended  on 31-03-2017 Year ended  on 31-03-2016 

      Amount in (Rs.) Amount in (Rs.) 

I)   

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING  

ACTIVITIES     

  1 

 Net Surplus in Statement of profit & loss 

Before Taxes  

                                             

14,769,205.39  

                                              

11,529,641.47  

  2 Adjustments for:     

  i) Depreciation and Amortisation  

                                                                                                             

15,259,364.73  

                                                                                                             

13,387,370.85  

  ii) Finance Cost 

                                                                                                             

42.659,814.99  

                                                                                                             

46,147,596.93  

  iii) Interest Income  (2,741,703.32) (3,904,337.00) 

  iv) Dividend Income  0.00 (15.00) 

  v) (Profit)/Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets  0.00 (50,629.85) 

  vi) Rent received  (50,000.00) (120,000.00) 

  vii) Provisions 1,052,123.00 -  

    
Operating Profit Before Working Capital 

Changes 70,948,804.79 66,989,627.39 

          

  3 

 Adjustments for Working Capital 

changes:     

    Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in 

operating assets: 

    

    Inventories 17,405,835.41 13,183,653.20 

    Trade receivables (73,791,338.84) (40,918,506.15) 

    Short-term loans and advances (10,614,003.36) 988,086.29 

    Other current assets (12,915,732.16) (5,221,147.73) 

          

    Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in 

operating liabilities: 

  

  

    Trade payables                                                                                                              

22,174,740.72  

                                                                                                            

20,330,895.23  

    Other current liabilities                                                                                                   

31,228,211.57  

1,474,241.92 

          

  4 Cash Generated From Operations  

                                              

44,436,518.13  

                                             

56,826,850.15  

    Less: Direct Taxes Paid  546,487.44 (9,337,834.65) 

    
NET CASH FROM OPERATING 

ACTIVITIES [A] 

                                             

44,983,005.57  

                                             

47,489,015.50  

          

II)    

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING 

ACTIVITIES     

  i) Purchase of Tangible / Intangible Assets (27,995,451.31) (20,428,050.74) 

  ii) 

Proceeds on Disposal of Tangible Fixed 

Assets  

                                                                                                                  

8,625,052.27  

                                                                                                                  

4,327,446.00  

  iii) Interest Received  

                                                                                                                   

2,741,703.32  

                                                                                                                  

3,904,337.00  

  iv) Other Non Current Assets 

(4,683,802.80)                                                                                                                                                        

-    

  v) Long Term Loans and Advances (4,763,269.00) -  

  vi) Dividend Received  

                                                                                                                                                       

-    

                                                                                                                                           

15.00  

  vii) Issue of Equity Shares                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
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20,736,000.00  -    

  vii) Rent received  50,000.00 120,000.00 

    
NET CASH (USED IN) INVESTING 

ACTIVITIES [B] (5,289,767.52) (12,076,252.74) 

          

III)   

CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING 

ACTIVITIES     

  i) 

Proceeds/(Repayment) from Short Term 

Borrowings(Net) 

(1,418,446.24) 7,424,753.46 

  ii) 

Proceeds/(Repayment) from Long Term 

borrowings (Net) 

14,585,396.75 (1,498,056.45) 

  iii) 

Proceeds/(Repayment) from Long Term 

Liabilities (Net) 

(2,236,000.00) (4,618,487.50) 

  iv) Deferred Tax Liability (546,487.44) 9,337,834.65 

  v) Finance Cost Paid  (42,659,814.99) (46,147,596.93) 

    

NET CASH FROM FINANCING 

ACTIVITIES [C] (32,275,351.92) (35,501,552.77) 

          

    

NET CASH GENERATED/(USED)  

[A+B+C] 

7,417,886.13 (88,790.01) 

    

Cash & cash equivalents the beginning of the 

year 

                                                                                                             

23,681,029.37  

                                                                                                             

23,769,819.38  

    Cash & cash equivalents the end of the year 
                                              

31,098,915.50  

                                             

23,681,029.37  

          

  Note:       

  1 Components of cash & cash Equivlents:-     

    Cash on hand 

                                                                                                                      

830,854.63  

                                                                                                                      

392,626.67  

    Balances with banks     

                 In current Accounts 

                                                                                                                  

6,839,957.87  

                                                                                                                       

374,189.70  

                 In fixed deposits 

                                                                                                             

23,428,103.00  

                                                                                                              

22,914,213.00  

      31,098,915.50  23,681,029.37  

 

2 

The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in the Accounting 

Standard -3 on Cash Flow Statement 

 

 

As per our separate report of even date     For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 

FOR SARASWAT & COMPANY      

Chartered Accountants       Ashok Kumar Agarwal  

FRN 004846C       Chairman cum Managing Director   

         (DIN: 793152) 

CA Pravin Saraswat              

Partner      Shiv Charan Maheshwari  Priyanka Gattani  

Membership Number:  072679    Chief Financial Officer   Company Secretary 

Jaipur, Dated 27th May, 2017 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31/03/2017 

 

 

Note No.  1 

 

i) Corporate Information 

 

RMC Switchgears Limited is a public company domiciled in 

India. The company is primarily engaged in the business of 

‘Switchgear Engineering’ and `ECI contracts for power 

distribution / transmission sector’   

 

ii) Basis of Accounting 

 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance 

with the generally accepted accounting principles in   India 

under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. 

Pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, till the 

Standards of Accounting or any addendum thereto are 

prescribed by Central Government in consultation and 

recommendation of the National Financial Reporting 

Authority, the existing Accounting Standards notified under 

the Companies Act, 1956 shall continue to apply. 

Consequently, these financial statements have been prepared 

to comply, in all material aspects, with the accounting 

standards notified under Section 211(3C) of the Companies 

Act, 1956 [Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, 

as amended] and other relevant provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013 (the 'Act'). 

 

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or 

non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and 

other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act. 

 

iii) Changes in Accounting Policies  

 

The Company has reclassified/regrouped/rearranged the 

previous year figures, wherever necessary, to make them 

comparable with current year’s figures & groups.  

 

iv) Fixed Assets and Depreciation 

 

a) Fixed Assets are stated at cost including attributable 

cost (net of cenvat/vat credit availed) of bringing the 

assets to its working condition for the intended use. 

 

b) Depreciation on the assets has been provided as under: 

1) Depreciation has been provided on the basis of 

useful lives of the tangible assets as prescribed in 

Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 by using 

Straight-line method (SLM) of depreciation. Based 

on the technical advice, company has taken the 

useful lives of 20 years in case of some Plant & 

Machineries in place of 15 years as prescribed in 

Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

2) Depreciation on intangible assets is provided in 

accordance with AS-26 over the period of 5 years. 

 

3) Premium paid on Leasehold Land is amortized 

over the Lease term which is of 99 years.  

 

4) Impairment of Tangible & Intangible Assets 

 

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at 

each reporting date if there is any indication of 

impairment based on internal / external factors. An 

impairment loss is recognized wherever the 

carrying amount of asset exceeds its recoverable 

amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of 

the assets’ net selling price and its value in use. In 

assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 

flows are discounted to their present value using 

weighted average cost of capital. 

 

Post impairment, depreciation is provided on the 

revised carrying amount of the asset over its 

remaining useful life. 

 

c) Some of the items of  Plant and Machinery, which  

were retired during the FY 2016-17 from the active 

use  wef 01/10/2016 and held  for disposal,  has been 

stated  at the  lower of their carrying amount and net 

realisable  value.   

 

v) Valuation of Inventory 

 

Inventory of raw material, stores, spares, semi-finished goods 

and finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net 

realizable value.  Cost is determined on the basis of 

FIFO/Weighted Average Method.  Inventory of rejected 

material is valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is 

lower. Work in process generally includes cost of direct 

material, labour cost and other manufacturing overheads. 

Goods-in-Transit is valued at cost.  

 

v)   Excise Duty 

 

Excise Duty is chargeable on production but is payable on 

clearance of goods. Accordingly, Excise Duty on goods 

manufactured by the Company is accounted for at the time of 

their clearance. Duty on finished goods lying in its Factory 

Premises as on the Balance Sheet date has neither been 

provided nor included in the valuation of such stocks. This, 

however, has no effect on the profit for the year. 

 

vi)  Income Tax 

 

a) Provision is made for the income tax liability in 

accordance with the provision of the Income Tax Act, 

1961.  Company has provided for the tax liability u/s 

115JB  (MAT) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and 

consequent MAT Credit available has been recognized 

as asset. 

 

b) Deferred Tax has been provided on the DTL (net of 

DTA) at the prevailing Income Tax Rates as 

prescribed under Income Tax Act, 1961.    However, 
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the tax rate being used is as prescribed u/s 115JB of 

the Income Tax Act, 1961 (in place of regular rate i.e. 

30%) in view of the availability of unabsorbed 

depreciation and MAT Credit for adjustment against 

future profits.  Company was using regular rate of tax 

till the last financial year and had such rate been used 

for current FY also, the profit would had been lower 

by Rs. 4526876/- and Deferred Tax Liability would 

had been higher by the same amount. 

 

vii)   Liquidated Damages: 

 

Liquidated damages are provided based on contractual terms 

when the delivery/commissioning dates of an individual 

project have exceeded or are likely to exceed the 

delivery/commissioning dates as per the respective contract. 

This expenditure is expected to be incurred over the 

respective contractual terms upto closure of the contract.   

 

viii) Foreign Currency: 

 

a. Transactions in Foreign Currency entered into by the 

Company are accounted at the Exchange Rates 

prevailing the date of the transaction. Foreign 

Currency monetary items of the company, outstanding 

on the Balance Sheet date are restated at the year-end 

rates. Non- monetary items of the company are carried 

at historical costs. 

b. Exchange Difference arising on settlement / 

restatement of short term foreign currency monetary 

assets & liabilities of the company are recognized as 

expense in the statement of Profit & Loss. 

 

ix)  Revenue Recognition: 

 

a.  Sales Revenue is recognized when the risk and 

rewards of ownership are passed on to  the 

customers, which is generally on dispatch. Excise 

Duty deducted from turnover (gross) is the amount 

that is included in the amount of turnover (gross) and 

not the entire amount of liability arisen during the year 

 

b. Revenue from turnkey contracts is recognized based 

on the stage of completion determined with reference 

to the costs incurred on contracts and their estimated 

total costs. The company collects Service Tax on 

behalf of the Central Government and therefore, it is 

not an economic benefit flowing to the Company.  

Hence, it is excluded from revenue. Provision for 

foreseeable losses/ construction contingencies on 

turnkey  contracts is made on the basis of technical 

assessments of costs to be incurred and revenue to be 

accounted for. 

c. Price Escalation and other claims or variations in the 

contract work are included in contract revenue only 

when: 

 

i) Negotiations have reached to an advanced stage 

such that it is probable that customer will accept 

the claim: and 

ii) The amount that is probable will be accepted by 

the customer and can be measured reliably. 

 

x)  Use of Estimates: 

The preparation of financial statements requires the 

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 

the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, as of the date of 

financial statements and the reported amount of revenue and 

expenses of the year.  Actual results could differ from these 

estimates. The difference between the actual results and 

estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are 

known/materialized. 

 

xi) Borrowing Costs 

 

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition, construction 

or production of qualifying assets are added to the cost of 

those assets as Pre-operative Expenses. During the year, Rs. 

22.82 Lacs (Previous year Rs. 19.81 Lacs) has been 

capitalized for the Capital Assets added during the year.  All 

other borrowing costs are recognized in Statement of Profit 

and Loss in the period in which they are incurred. 

 

xii)  Employees Benefits: 

 

a) Defined Contribution Plans:   

 

Employees' own and Employer’s contribution to Provident 

Funds are contributed by company monthly at a determined 

rate. These contributions are remitted to the Employees’ 

Provident Fund Organization, India and is charged to Profit 

and Loss Account on accrual basis  

 

b) Defined Benefits Plans: 

 

Gratuity:  The Company provides for gratuity, a defined 

benefit retirement plan, for its employees. The plan provides 

for lump sum payments to the eligible employees at 

retirement, death, while in employment, or on termination of 

employment or otherwise as per the provisions the Payment 

of Gratuity Act, 1972. The company accounts for liability of 

future gratuity benefits based on an external actual valuation 

on projected unit credit method carried out annually for 

assessing liability as at the balance sheet date.  

 

xiii)  Segment Reporting: 

 

a) Primary Segment: Company is engaged in `Switch Gear 

Engineering’ and `Construction contracts for power 

distribution / transmission sector’ which relate to one 

primary segment i.e. Power.  

 

b) Secondary Segment: The Company operates 

predominantly within the geographical limits of India 

and accordingly secondary segments have not been 

considered. 

 

xiv)  Insurance Claim receivable by company: 

 

There was an incident of fire resulting in the partial / 

complete loss of a few items of Building, Plant & Machinery 
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and Stock under process. Company has lodged a claim of Rs. 

2.50 Crore against the estimated loss and the claim is under 

process as on 31/03/2017. Ascertainment of Loss/Gain on the 

claim is not possible as on 31/03/2017 and therefore the same 

would be accounted for as and when settled.  However, 

company has deleted written down value of Building and 

Plant & Machinery to the extent of Rs. 66.26 Lacs and 

debited to the Insurance Company, pending determination of 

claim amount.  

 

xv)   Deferred Revenue Expenditure:  

 

Company had come out with the Initial Public Offer (IPO) 

during the year mainly for financing the working capital 

requirement of the company.   Expenditure incurred for this 

purpose is being written off over the period of 5 years in 

equal installment, beginning from 01/04/2017.  As the 

amount was raised for the purpose of using for working 

capital purposes, expenses incurred are being claimed as 

expense for the purpose of Income Tax. 

 

As per our separate report of even date  

FOR SARASWAT & COMPANY    For & on behalf of the Board of Directors   

Chartered Accountants      Ashok Kumar Agarwal  

FRN 004846C       Chairman cum Managing Director   

         (DIN: 793152) 

CA Pravin Saraswat              

Partner      Shiv Charan Maheshwari Priyanka Gattani  

Membership Number:  072679    Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary 

Jaipur, Dated 27th May, 2017 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2017 

 NOTE : 2  

  
   

 SHARE CAPITAL         (AMOUNT IN Rs)  

   As At 31.03.2017   As At 31.3.2016  

 AUTHORISED CAPITAL          

 6500000  Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each      65,000,000.00 20,000,000.00 

 (Previous Year 2000000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)          

  

 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL          

 5092200 Equity shares of Rs 10/- each Fully Paid up.      50,922,000.00 10,810,500.00 

 (Previous year 1081050  Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each )          

 TOTAL   50,922,000.00 10,810,500.00 

              

   i)   Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period :    

   Particulars   As At 31.03.2017   As At 31.3.2016  

   Outstanding at the beginning of the Year  1,081,050 1,081,050 

   Add : Fresh Equity Shares issued during the quarter as Bonus Shares   3,243,150                                                

-    

   Add : Fresh Equity Shares issued during the Year through Initial Public Offer  768,000                                                
-    

   Outstanding at the end of the Year  5,092,200 1,081,050 

  

   ii)   Details of Shareholders holding more than 5 % equity shares :  

   Particulars   As At 31.03.2017   As At 31.3.2016  

   No. of Shares   % Holding   No. of Shares   % Holding  

   (a)   Santosh Agrawal  568,520.00 11.16% 186,380.00 17.24% 

   (b)   Vitthal Das Agrawal (HUF)  500,600.00 9.83% 164,400.00 15.21% 

   (c)   Ankit Agarwal   569,880.00 11.19% 160,220.00 14.82% 

   (d)   Argent Leasing & Finance Pvt. Ltd.   413,120.00 8.11% 137,530.00 12.72% 

   (e)   Ashok Kumar Agrawal   455,000.00 8.94% 131,250.00 12.14% 

   (f)   Parwati Bai  302,920.00 5.95% 97,230.00 8.99% 

   (g)   Ashok Kumar Agrawal (HUF)  212,840.00 4.18% 70,710.00 6.54% 

              

   iii)   Terms and Rights attached to equity shares:  

    The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per 

equity share. A member shall not have any right to vote whilst any call or other sum shall be due and payable to the Company in respect of any of 
the shares of such member. All equity shares of the Company rank pari passu in all respects including the right to dividend. The dividend is 

recommended by the Board of Directors and declared by the members at the ensuing Annual general Meeting.  

   iv)   Company doesn't have any holding or ultimate holding Company.  

   v)   3243150  Nos. of  Equity Shares  of  Rs 10/- each    have been allotted as  Bonus Shares by capitalising Share Premium amounting Rs. 32431500/-  
during the FY 2016-17  

  

 NOTE : 3  

 RESERVES & SURPLUS  

   As At 31.03.2017   As At 31.3.2016  

 (a)   Share Premium Account      

   As per Last Financial Statements  66,186,750.00 66,186,750.00 

   Add: Share Premium Received  13,056,000.00 -  

   Less:  Capitalised as Bonus Shares   32,431,500.00                                                

-    

   Closing Balance   46,811,250.00 66,186,750.00 

    

 (b)   Capital Reserve      

   As per Last Financial Statements:      

   Capital Investment Subsidy-State  1,450,060.00 1,450,060.00 

   CLCS Subsidy-Central Government  1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00 

    2,950,060.00 2,950,060.00 

 (c)   Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss      

   As per Last Financial Statements  22,649,863.90 20,458,057.08 

   Add : Transferred during the year from Statement of Profit and Loss  15,315,692.83 2,191,806.82 

   Net Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss  37,965,556.73 22,649,863.90 
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   TOTAL   87,726,866.73 91,786,673.90 

    

 NOTE : 4  

 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS  

 PARTICULARS   As At 31.03.2017   As At 31.3.2016  

   Non Current   Current   Non Current   Current  

 SECURED          

 I.   Term loans from bank          

   From The Federal Bank Ltd  1,352,160.86 6,209,073.00 11,795,069.08 1,500,000.00 

            

 II.   Secured Subordinate Loan          

   From Small Industries Development Bank of India 

(SIDBI)  

24,375,000.00 5,625,000.00 30,000,000.00                                                

-    

            

 III.   Other Secured loans for vehicles  1,404,019.66 1,474,638.39 2,553,659.85 2,137,430.25 

            

 IV.    Other Secured Loans for Plant & Machinery  1,518,071.00 3,387,676.00 2,971,225.00 4,080,887.48 

            

 UNSECURED          

 I.   Long term borrowings          

   (a)   From Directors /Ex-Directors  35,271,066.00                                      

-    

5,277,670.18                                                

-    

   (b)   Inter-Corporate Deposits  67,660,421.83   53,116,864.83   

   (c)   Deferred Payment of  Sales Tax                                         
-    

                                     
-    

13,479,938.71                                                
-    

   (d)   Others   51,110,559.60 2,652,923.60 48,911,474.55   

      182,691,298.95 19,349,310.99 168,105,902.20 7,718,317.73 

              

 (A)   Nature of Securities:          

   I.   TERM LOAN  

     Secured by way of first charge ranking pari passu on the entire fixed assets of the company, both present and future situated at Malviya Industrial 
Area, Jaipur and  Tehsil Chaksu, Jaipur  and personal guarantees of  Ashok  Kumar  Agarwal  and  Ankit Agarwal,  and Ms. Neha Agarwal, 

Directors of Company    

    

   II.   Secured Subordinate Loan  

     SIDBI  Loan is secured by way of second charge on the  immovable assets  of the company and further  secured by the  personal guarantees of  
Ashok  Kumar  Agarwal  and  Ankit Agarwal, Directors of Company,   Smt. Santosh Agarwal and  VD  Agarwal Ex-Directors of company  

      

 (B)   Terms of repayment of term loans and other loans:  

  1  SECURED TERM LOAN  

   PARTICULARS   As At 31.03.2017   As At 31.3.2016   Terms of Repayment  

   I)   The Federal Bank Ltd         

     Loan of Rs 200.00 Lakhs  6,452,160.86 11,536,876.08  Repayable in 72 Monthly Instalments in 7 years 
commencing from the 2nd Year. Instalments pending 

as on 31st March, 2017 are 16. ROI is BR+4.03%  

     Loan of Rs.40.00 Lakhs  1,109,073.00 1,758,193.00  Repayable in 36 monthly instalments. Instalments 
pending as on 31st March. 2017 are 10                   

ROI is BR+2.55%= 12.5%  

   II)   Small Industries Development Bank of 

India  

30,000,000.00 30,000,000.00  Repayment in 48 Monthly Instalments commencing 

from July, 2017. ROI is 15%.  

   III)    Hero Fincorp Ltd  1,934,522.00                                      

-    

 Repayable in 48 Monthly Instalments commencing 

from February, 2017. ROI is 13%  

   iv)   L&T Finance Ltd.   2,971,225.00 7,052,112.48  Repayable in Equated monthly instalments of 

Rs.396550/- each at the interest rate of 13% p.a. 8 
instalments are to be paid as on 31st March,  2017  

    

  2  UNSECURED TERM LOAN  

   PARTICULARS   As At 31.03.2017   As At 31.3.2016   Terms of Repayment  

            

   (a)   From Directors /Ex-Directors  35,271,066.00 5,277,670.18  Repayable not earlier than 12 months on demand  

   (b)   Inter-Corporate Deposits  67,660,421.83 53,116,864.83  Repayable not earlier than 12 months on demand  

   (c)   Others - Standard Chartered Bank   51,110,559.60 2,652,923.60  Repayable in 48 monthly Instalments commencing 
from Dec. 2016. ROI is 9.85%  

    

  3  VEHICLE LOAN        
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   PARTICULARS   As At 31.03.2017   As At 31.3.2016   Terms of Repayment  

    

   I)   Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd.  36,418.00 240,982.00  Repayable in Equated Monthly Instalment of Rs. 

18470/-  Each,    2 instalments to be paid as on 31st 
March, 2017   

   II)   ICICI Bank Ltd    

     ICICI Innova (6336) Loan A/c No. 

LAJAI00029886690 

263,740.10 680,047.00 Repayable in Equated Monthly Instalment of Rs. 

39009/-  Each at interest rate of 10.51%,  7 
instalments to be paid as on 31st  March, 2017 

     ICICI (Indica) Loan (LAJAI00034168043)  255,822.10 371,619.40  Repayable in monthly instalments of Rs.12315/- 

each at Interest rate of 10.01% p.a. 23 instalments are 

to be paid on 31st March, 2017  

     ICICI (Indigo) Loan (LAJAI00033991087)  302,983.30 446,753.10  Repayable in monthly instalments of Rs.15168/- 

each at Interest rate of 10.01% p.a. 22 instalments are 

to be paid on 31st March, 2017  

   III)   Axis Bank Ltd.  1,240,184.00 1,599,218.00  Repayable in Equated Monthly Instalment of Rs. 

42500/-  Each at interest rate of 10.50%,                   

34 instalments to be paid as on 31st March, 2017  

   IV)   Reliance Capital Ltd.    

     Reliance Capital Ltd. Account No. 

RLUMJAI000273232  

33,758.21 284,417.63  Repayable in 36 Equated monthly instalments of Rs. 

21183/-. Interest rate is 17.02%p.a.3 instalments are 

to be paid as on 31st March, 2017  

     Reliance Capital Ltd. Account No. 
RLUMJAI000273235  

109,790.20 376,350.46  Repayable in 36 Equated monthly instalments of Rs. 
28030/-. Interest rate is 17.02%p.a. 3 instalments are 

to be paid as on 31st March, 2017  

   V)   HDFC  Bank Ltd.   310,964.14 483,212.51  Repayable in Equated monthly instalments of 
Rs.17786/- each at interest rate of 10.15% p.a. 19 

instalments are to be paid as on 31st March, 2017  

   VI)   Sunderam Finance Ltd  324,998.00                                      

-    

 Repayable in 36 Equated monthly instalments of Rs. 

15385/-. Interest rate is 12.04%p.a. 24 instalments are 
to be paid as on 31st March, 2017  

    

 NOTE : 5  

 OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES  

   As At 31.03.2017   As At 31.3.2016  

 Trade Payables   1,144,621.13 3,380,621.13 

        

   TOTAL   1,144,621.13 3,380,621.13 

  

 NOTE : 6  

 LONG TERM PROVISIONS   

     As At 31.03.2017   As At 31.3.2016  

 Provisions for Employee benefits   1,052,123.00 -  

        

   TOTAL   1,052,123.00                                                

-    

  

 NOTE : 7  

 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS  

   As At 31.03.2017   As At 31.3.2016  

 Loans repayable on demand:      

 Secured      

 Cash credit from The Federal Bank Ltd.  89,101,941.79 87,938,389.51 

 Buyers credit from  the bank                                            

-    

1,181,998.52 

 Unsecured      

 Security Deposits and Refundable/Adjustable Advances                                            

-    

1,400,000.00 

 TOTAL   89,101,941.79 90,520,388.03 

 Nature of Securities:  

1  Cash Credit  & Buyers' Credit   

   Secured by way of hypothecation of all inventories, book-debts and other receivables of the company.  Also secured by way of  first charge ranking pari 
passu on all immovable assets of the company, both present and future and personal guarantees of  Ashok Kumar Agarwal , Neha Agarwal  and Ankit 

Agarwal, Directors of company   

  

 NOTE : 8  

 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES  
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   As At 31.03.2017   As At 31.3.2016  

   (a)   Current maturities of      

     Term Loan (Secured)  11,834,073.00 1,500,000.00 

     Vehicle Loan (Secured)  1,474,638.39 2,137,430.25 

     Plant and Machinery Loan   3,387,676.00 4,080,887.48 

     Other Loans  2,652,923.60 -  

   (b)    Advance from Customers  15,050,469.89 852,021.28 

   (c)   Creditors For Expenses  23,542,997.57 19,411,458.41 

   (d)   Statutory & Other Liabilities  2,330,688.54 1,063,458.00 

   (e)   Interest accrued but not due  271,233.00 271,233.00 

          

     TOTAL   60,544,699.99 29,316,488.42 

 

NOTE NO. 9 

FIXED ASSETS 

DESCRIPTION OF 

ASSETS 

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION  AND AMORTISATION  NET BLOCK 

AS AT ADDITION 

DEDUCTIO

NS AS AT AS AT DELETION 

 

DEPRECIAT

ION / 

AMORTISAT

ION  AS AT AS AT AS AT 

1.04.16     31.03.2017 1.04.16 SALES   31.03.2017 31.03.2017 1.04.16 

RS. RS. RS. RS. RS.   RS. RS. RS. RS. 

1.TANGIBLE ASSETS                     

Freehold Land 1,850,100.00 - - 1,850,100.00 - - - - 1,850,100.00 1,850,100.00 

Leasehold Land 598,238.00 - - 598,238.00 120,856.20 - 5,665.00 126,521.20 471,716.80 477,381.80 

Building 84,508,417.05 2,726,136.33 2,913,973.26 84,320,580.12 13,214,202.98 227,490.71 2,360,190.92 15,346,903.19 68,973,676.93 71,294,214.07 

Plant &  Equipments 165,389,474.83 17,942,575.73 23,325,358.26 160,006,692.30 49,074,445.31 17,407,765.72 8,399,107.74 40,065,787.33 119,940,904.97 116,315,029.52 

Misc. Fixed Assts  44,374,370.62 3,706,122.51 36,521.46 48,043,971.67 13,973,843.52 15,544.28 2,820,615.04 16,778,914.28 31,265,057.39 30,400,527.10 

Furniture 1,638,576.29 2,321,147.22 - 3,959,723.51 942,896.48 - 170,405.28 1,113,301.76 2,846,421.75 695,679.81 

Vehicles 13,341,589.13 103,765.73 - 13,445,354.86 4,762,985.47 - 1,434,464.80 6,197,450.27 7,247,904.59 8,578,603.66 

                      

TOTAL 311,700,765.92 26,799,747.52 26,275,852.98 312,224,660.46 82,089,229.96 17,650,800.71 15,190,448.78 79,628,878.03 232,595,782.43 229,611,535.96 

Previous Year 271,377,693.57 46,300,425.55 5,977,353.20 311,700,765.92 70,514,008.05 1,700,537.05 13,275,758.99 82,089,229.98 229,611,535.95 200,863,685.53 

                      

2. INTANGIBLE 

ASSETS                     

Softwares 1,090,709.49 965,883.55 - 2,056,593.04 1,001,555.33 - 68,915.95 1,070,471.28 986,121.76 89,154.16 

                      

TOTAL 1,090,709.49 965,883.55 - 2,056,593.04 1,001,555.33 - 68,915.95 1,070,471.28 986,121.76 89,154.16 

Previous Year 1,090,709.49 - - 1,090,709.49 889,943.47 - 111,611.86 1,001,555.331 89,154.16 200,766.02 

3. CAPITAL WORK-IN-

PROGRESS                     

Project Work - 229,820.22   229,820.22 - - - - 229,820.22 - 

TOTAL   229,820.22 - 229,820.22 - - - - 229,820.22 - 

Previous Year - - - - - - - - - - 

GRAND TOTAL 312,791,475.41 27,995,451.29 26,275,852.98 314,511,073.72 83,090,785.29 17,650,800.71 15,259,364.73 80,699,349.31 233,811,724.41 229,700,690.12 

 (Previous Year) 272,468,403.06 46,300,425.55 5,977,353.20 312,791,475.41 71,403,951.52 1,700,537.05 13,387,370.85 83,090,785.31 229,700,690.11 201,064,451.55 

NOTE 9.1: Deletion/Deductions indicate the Written Down Value  of assets lost in fire on 23/06/2016 for which claim has been lodged with Insurance Company.  It also includes the Plant and Machinery retired from active use  

 
NOTE : 10  

 LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES  

   As At 31.03.2017   As At 31.3.2016  

 (Unsecured, considered good)      

   (a)   Capital Advances  4,870,558.00 107,289.00 

          

     TOTAL   4,870,558.00 107,289.00 

          

 NOTE : 11  

 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS      

   As At 31.03.2017   As At 31.3.2016  

          (Unsecured, considered good)      

   (a)   Security Deposits  1,172,369.40 1,124,369.40 
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   (b)   Deferred Revenue Expenditure  3,449,193.80                                                -    

   (c)   Fixed Deposits with Banks (with Maturity of more than Twelve Months)   

  

1,186,609.00   

     (Pledged with Bank  as Cash Margin Money   for  Bank Guarantees/Letter of 
Credits)  

    

     TOTAL   5,808,172.20 1,124,369.40 

  

 NOTE : 12  

 INVENTORIES  

     As At 31.03.2017   As At 31.3.2016  

   (a)  Raw Materials (Including Goods in Transit of Rs - NIL Previous year Rs NIL)   7,916,432.14 3,347,044.63 

   (b)   Work in Progress*  7,178,531.59 4,028,099.10 

   (c)   Finished Goods:      

   (ci)             Manufactured  2,373,573.80 3,883,678.62 

   (cii)             Traded(Project)                                            -    20,146,830.27 

   (d)   Stores & spares (Including  Goods in Transit of Rs - NIL Previous year Rs 

NIL )  

15,034,749.26 18,503,469.59 

          

     TOTAL   3,25,03,286.80 4,99,09,122.21 

 * includes goods destroyed  in  fire on 23/06/2016 for which claim has been lodged with Insurance Company  (See Note   (1)(xiv )  

  

 NOTE : 13  

 TRADE RECEIVABLES  

     As At 31.03.2017   As At 31.3.2016  

          (Unsecured, considered good)      

   (a)   Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the due date   25,889,521.39 4,955,771.83 

   (b)   Others  209,660,468.65 156,802,879.37 

         

     TOTAL   235,549,990.04 161,758,651.20 

         

 NOTE : 14  

 CASH AND BANK BALANCES  

 PARTICULARS   As At 31.03.2017   As At 31.3.2016  

   Cash and cash equivalents      

 
(a)  

 Cash on Hand  830,854.63 392,626.67 

 

(b)  

 Balance with scheduled Banks:      

   i) In Current Accounts  6,839,957.87 374,189.70 

   ii) Fixed  Deposits with  maturity of       

   less than 1 year*  (including Accrued  Interest)  23,428,103.00 22,914,213.00 

   TOTAL   31,098,915.50 23,681,029.37 

   * Pledged with Bank  as Cash Margin Money   for  Bank Guarantees/Letter of Credits      

    Fixed Deposits with Banks with Maturity of more than Twelve Months included in 

Note 11  

1,186,609.00   

   

 NOTE : 14.1  

 DISCLSOURE ON SPECIFIED BANK NOTES (SBNs) 

During the year, the company had deposited/transacted specified bank notes or other  denomination note as defined in the MCA notification G.S.R. 308(E) dated 

March 31, 2017.  The details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from November 8, 2016 to December, 30 2016, the 

denomination wise SBNs and other notes as per the notification is given below. 

 PARTICULARS   SBNs*   Other denomination 

Notes  

 Total  

Closing cash in hand as on November 8, 2016 2,316,000.00 1,798,606.63 4,114,606.63 

  (+) Permitted receipts (Including Withdrawals from the 

Bank) 

  444,121.00 444,121.00 

  (-) Permitted payments   246,587.00 246,587.00 

  (-) Amount deposited in Banks 2,316,000.00 450,000.00 2,766,000.00 

Closing cash in hand as on December 30, 2016                                      -    1,546,140.63 1,546,140.63 

* For the purposes of this clause, the term ‘Specified Bank Notes’ shall have the same meaning provided in the notification of the Government of India, in the 

Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs number S.O. 3407(E), dated the 8th November, 2016 

  

 NOTE : 15  

 SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES      
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   As At 31.03.2017   As At 31.3.2016  

 (Unsecured, considered good)      

 Advances Recoverable in Cash/Kind or value to be received  18,699,167.57 6,484,417.42 

 Prepaid Expenses  2,899,930.15 4,500,676.94 

   TOTAL   21,599,097.72 10,985,094.36 

  

 NOTE : 16  

 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS  

   As At 31.03.2017   As At 31.3.2016  

 (Unsecured, considered good)      

   CENVAT   Credit  of :-      

   a)   Excise Duty on Inputs (Including Cess)  4,088,721.50 12,76,326.84 

   b)   Service Tax on  Input Services (Including Cess)  188,299.79 46,383.69 

   Security Deposit  13,785,516.00 88,80,842.00 

   Income Tax Refundable/Tax Deducted at Source  0.00 1,07,725.00 

   MAT Credit Entitlement  7,552,118.09 4,387,057.09 

   Plant & Machinery  retired from active use and held for disposal  1,999,411.40                                                -    

   TOTAL   27,614,066.78 14,698,334.62 

 

NOTE : 17 

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

      
FOR YEAR  ENDED 

31.03.2017 

FOR YEAR  

ENDED 31.03.2016 

      Rs. Rs. 

(a)  Sale of Products       

  Electrical Products (Made of Metal)   98,497,927.98 170,955,067.01 

  Engineering Plastic   38,275,518.68 33,064,566.61 

  Electrical Products (Made of SMC)   328,506,480.27 269,190,391.08 

  Energy Meter   - 3,815,068.88 

  Sale of Scrap   1,933,227.35 891,315.31 

  Sale Of Turnkey Project Related Goods   42,220,342.29 88,099,059.35 

  Trading Sales   10,653,717.56 - 

(b) Sale of Services       

  Erection & Commissioning  Services   23,965,251.10 23,235,404.21 

      544,052,465.23 589,250,872.45 

(c) Other Operating Revenues       

  Transport Charges Recovered    14,915,277.94 18,225,599.26 

  REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS(GROSS)   558,967,743.17 607,476,471.71 

  

NOTE : 18 

OTHER INCOME 

      
FOR YEAR  ENDED 

31.03.2017 

FOR YEAR  

ENDED 31.03.2016 

      Rs. Rs. 

  Interest on Bank Deposits including Interest Accrued & not due    1,450,611.00 1,840,321.00 

  Interest Income (Others)   1,291,092.32 2,064,016.00 

  Dividend Received   - 15.00 

  Discount Received   212,742.00 102,903.88 

  Profit (Loss) on Sale of Fixed Assets   - 50,629.85 

  Liabilities no longer payable Written Off   13,479,938.71 -  

  Rent Received   50,000.00 120,000.00 

  Insurance Claim Received   40,500.00 -  

  TOTAL    16,524,884.03 4,177,885.73 

  

NOTE : 19 

COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED 

      
FOR YEAR  ENDED 

31.03.2017 

FOR YEAR  

ENDED 31.03.2016 

      Rs. Rs. 

  Opening Stock   3,347,044.63 13,394,802.20 
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  Add : Purchases(Net of Returns)    166,044,982.06 166,135,298.06 

      169,392,026.69 179,530,100.26 

  Less: Closing Stock   7,916,432.14 3,347,044.63 

  TOTAL    161,475,594.56 176,183,055.63 

          

NOTE : 19.1 

Materials consumed comprise: 

      
FOR YEAR  ENDED 

31.03.2017 

FOR YEAR  

ENDED 31.03.2016 

      Rs. Rs. 

a) Plastic Dana   18,553,319.25 11,218,690.62 

b)  Ferrous and Non-ferrous Metals   70,613,101.68 99,354,525.80 

c)  Sheet Moulding Compound, Resins & other fibres etc.   72,309,173.63 65,609,839.20 

      161,475,594.56 176,183,055.63 

          

NOTE : 19.2 

Value of Imported and indigenous Raw material Consumed and their percentage to consumption : 

        
FOR YEAR  ENDED 

31.03.2017 

FOR YEAR  

ENDED 31.03.2016 

a) 
Value of Imported  and Indigenous Raw Materials Consumed during 
the year :         

  Imported Value Rs. 2,411,565.36 8,929,460.13 

    Percentage   1.49% 5.07% 

  Indigenous Value Rs. 159,064,029.20 167,253,595.50 

    Percentage   98.51% 94.93% 

            

        161,475,594.56 176,183,055.63 

  

NOTE : 20 

CHANGES IN FINISHED GOODS AND WORK IN PROGRESS 

          

        
FOR YEAR  ENDED 

31.03.2017 

FOR YEAR  

ENDED 31.03.2016 

  Opening Stock     Rs. Rs. 

    Work In Progress   4,028,099.10 21,863,194.78 

    Finished Goods   24,030,508.88 15,274,289.89 

        28,058,607.98 37,137,484.67 

  Closing Stock         

    Work In Progress   7,178,531.59 4,028,099.10 

    Finished Goods   2,373,573.80 24,030,508.88 

        9,552,105.40 28,058,607.98 

  TOTAL    18,506,502.58 9,078,876.69 

  

NOTE : 21 

EMPLOYEES BENEFITS EXPENSE 

          

      
FOR YEAR  ENDED 

31.03.2017 

FOR YEAR  

ENDED 31.03.2016 

      Rs. Rs. 

a) Salary,Wages & Allowances   19,494,850.00 18,433,203.00 

 b) Contribution to Provident Fund   64,946.00 61,523.00 

 c) Labour & Staff Welfare Expenses   1,355,183.92 398,007.00 

          

  TOTAL   20,914,979.92 18,892,733.00 

          

NOTE : 22 

FINANCE COSTS 

      
FOR YEAR  ENDED 

31.03.2017 

FOR YEAR  

ENDED 31.03.2016 

a) Interest Expense on   Rs. Rs. 
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  Borrowings from Bank   22,835,814.49 23,044,167.33 

  Others   15,170,134.11 19,507,091.00 

b) Other Borrowing Costs   6,936,267.39 5,577,496.6 

Less : Borrowing Cost  Capitalized during the Year   (2,282,401.00) (1,981,158.00) 

  TOTAL   42659814.99 46,147,596.93 

NOTE : 23 

OTHER EXPENSES 

    
FOR YEAR  ENDED 

31.03.2017 

FOR YEAR  

ENDED 31.03.2016 

    Rs. Rs. 

Auditors' Remuneration   275000.00 240000.00 

Brokerage   130150.48 156493.23 

Conveyance Expenses   95952.00 19108.00 

Deductions/Penalties by customers   0.00 73047.00 

Directors'  Remuneration   2550000.00 1500000.00 

Discount/ Rate Difference   757705.52 1393856.10 

Excise, Service Tax and VAT  Expenses    1069584.49 867986.23 

Freight & Carriage Inward   3180472.46 3483870.98 

Insurance Expenses   773565.35 843335.00 

Job Work Charges   11880779.84 18804127.86 

Loading, Unloading & Labour Charges   227286.00 251983.00 

Liquidated Damages   0.00 1149352.46 

Miscellaneous Expenses   1274631.56 932072.96 

Packing  Material Consumed   7528295.51 7164573.02 

Postage & Courier Expenses   62999.69 68675.00 

Power & Fuel   11908545.00 10505431.00 

Printing & Stationery   177109.62 54030.75 

Professional  & Legal Charges   775548.30 945448.65 

Rent   400500.00 599930.00 

Repairs & Maintenance Expenses       

 a)  Plant & Machinery    903293.26 938215.52 

 b)  Building    9878.00 345003.54 

 c)  Others   907331.34 964750.35 

Stores, Spares & Accessories Consumed   138320501.84 130619689.70 

Selling and Distribution expenses   17410148.28 14476689.40 

Telephone   &  Internet Expenses   523875.21 495240.09 

Travelling Expenses   3867545.49 2626690.18 

Type-Testing Expenses   771040.80 600224.18 

Vehicle Upkeep Expenses    194000.00 104750.00 

TOTAL    205,975,740.04 200,224,574.20 

  
 

      

(A) Auditors’ Remuneration (net of service tax input credit)       

  i)    As Auditor   275,000.00 240,000.00 

  ii)   Re-imbursement of Expenses   - - 

      275,000.00 240,000.00 

          

NOTE : 23.1 

Value of Imported and indigenous Stores & Spares Consumed and their percentage to consumption : 

      
FOR YEAR  ENDED 

31.03.2017 

FOR YEAR  

ENDED 31.03.2016 

a) 
Value of Imported and indigenous Stores & Spares Consumed and their percentage to 

consumption :       

  Imported Value Rs. - - 

    Percentage   0.00% 0.00% 

  Indigenous Value Rs. 138,320,501.84 130,619,689.70 

    Percentage   100.00% 100.00% 

            

        138,320,501.84 130,619,689.70 

NOTE : 24 
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Related Party Disclosures as required by AS-18 are given below: 

   Name of the related parties and nature of relationships :     

a) Companies with which transactions have taken place during the year :   Nature of Relationship 

  i) R.K Steel Industries   
Owned by Rajendra Agarwal brother of 
Director  

  ii) Synergy Solar System   

Owned by Neha Agarwal, Director of 

company 

  iii) Acme Metawires Pvt Ltd     

        

b) Key Management Personnel      

  i) Mr.Ashok Agarwal,  Managing Director     

  ii) Mr.Ankit Agarwal,  Whole Time Director     

  iii) Mrs. Neha  Agarwal,  Whole Time  Director      

  iv) Mr. Shiv Charan Maheshwari, Chief Finance Officer     

  v)  Ms. Priyanka Gattani, Company Secretary      

        

c) Relatives of key management Personnel    Relation 

  i) Mrs. Santosh Agarwal   Spouse of Managing Director  

  ii) Mr. Vitthal Das Agarwal   Father of Managing Director  

  iii) Mrs. Parvati Bai Agarwal   Mother of  Managing Director 

  iv) Mr. Amit Agarwal   Spouse of Daughter of Managing Director 

  v)Mr. Rajendra Agarwal   Brother of Managing Director 

        

  

The following transactions were carried out / outstanding with related parties in the ordinary course 

of business with parties referred  above:     

      
FOR YEAR  ENDED 

31.03.2017 

FOR YEAR  

ENDED 31.03.2016 

  Payments   Rs. Rs. 

  

Details of transactions with relative parties of Key Management Personnel as mentioned in (a) 

above are as under:       

  Job charges Paid    3,252,734.07 1,979,617.74 

  Material Purchased   1,866,003.00 -  

  Receipts    
    Rent   50,000.00 120,000.00 

          

  

Details of transactions with Key Management Personnel as mentioned in (b)  

        

  above are as under:       

  Remuneration to Directors   2,550,000.00 1,500,000.00 

  Remuneration to Key Management Persons    474,569.00 -  

  Rent for factory land   300,000.00 300,000.00 

  Interest payment    1,206,897.00 1,344,244.00 

          

  

Details of transactions with Relatives of Key Management Personnel as mentioned in (c) above are 

as under:       

          

  Interest payment    301,185.00 483,373.00 

          

  Balance outstanding  at the  end of period/ year :       

  Payable as at the year end (Net)   36,805,568.00 7,347,971.18 

  

NOTE : 25 

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE ACCOUNTING STANDARD - 7 (REVISED) "ERECTION & COMMISSION CONTRACT" 

Particulars   
FOR YEAR  ENDED 

31.03.2017 

FOR YEAR  

ENDED 31.03.2016 

          

  Particulars       

  (a) (i) Contract Revenue recognized during the year   66,185,593.39 106,872,497.43 

  (ii) Method used to determine the contract revenue recognized and the stage of completion   {Refer Note 1((ix)(b)} 

{Refer Note 

1((ix)(b)} 
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  (b) Disclosure in respect of contracts in progress as at the year end - -       

  (i) Aggregate amount of costs incurred and recognized profits (less recognized  losses)   

Included under various 
cost and expenses 

head of accounts 

Included under 

various cost and 
expenses head of 

accounts 

      (ii) Advances received, outstanding   - - 

      (iii) Retentions receivable   22,827,167.00 7,712,668.00 

      (iv) Amount due from customers (included under Note 12 – Trade Receivables )   47,944,658.83 41,742,401.21 

      (v) Amount due to customers    - - 

  

NOTE : 26 

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 

Particulars   As At 31.03.2017 As At 31.3.2016 

      Rs. Rs. 

a) Bank Guarantee issued to third parties by banks  ( Net of Margin)   159,192,914.00 114,501,886.40 

b)  Letter of Credit Issued to suppliers by banks     10,981,299.00 22,691,587.28 

c) Buyer's Credit  in Foreign Currency    - 1,181,998.12 

d) Disputed Excise Demand Liability(Net of  deposit)   4,246,457.00 126,629.00 

e) Claims lodged  but not accepted by company    1,005,317.00 - 

f) TDS Interest  Demand   46,076.00 50,620.00 

g) Capital Commitments(Net of Advances)   19,042,833.20 - 

          

NOTE : 27 

EARNING PER SHARE 

Particulars   
FOR YEAR  ENDED 

31.03.2017 

FOR YEAR  

ENDED 31.03.2016 

Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share (EPS) computed in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 20 “ 
Earning Per Share”       

      Rs. Rs. 

a) Weighted Average Equity Shares outstanding at year end   4,374,698.63 4,324,200.00 

b) Profit for Basic & Diluted Earning Per Share as per Statement of Profit and Loss   15,315,692.83 2,191,806.82 

c) Earning Per Share (Basic)   3.50 0.51 

d) Earning Per Share (Diluted)   3.50 0.51 

e) Face Value per Share   10.00 10.00 

  

NOTE : 28 

DISCLOSURES SPECIFIED BY THE MSMED ACT, 2006 

The Company has not received information from vendors regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence, 
disclosure relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end together with interest paid/payable under this Act could not be  given. 

  

NOTE : 29 

CIF VALUE OF IMPORTS, EXPENDITURE & EARNINGS IN FOREIGN CURRENCY  

Particulars   
FOR YEAR  ENDED 

31.03.2017 

FOR YEAR  

ENDED 31.03.2016 

      Rs. Rs. 

(a) Raw  Materials   2,081,191.00 7,784,984.92 

(b) Capital Goods   6,672,620.00 - 

( c) Expenditure in Foreign Currency    461,383.73 133550.00 

(d) Earnings in Foreign Currency   - - 

      9,215,194.73 7,918,534.92 

NOTE : 30 

DEFFERED TAXATION  ( See Note 1(vi)(b) 

  PARTICULARS   
FOR YEAR  ENDED 

31.03.2017 

FOR YEAR  

ENDED 31.03.2016 

      Rs. Rs. 

  Deferred  Tax Liabilities        

a) Accumulated Depreciation    70,030,116.36 63,432,631.30 

b) Expenses claimed as deducted but deferred in accounts   3,449,193.80 - 

      73,479,310.16 63,432,631.3 

  Deferred  Tax Assets       



 

 

ANNUAL REPORT 2016-17    

 

 
67 
 

a) Expenses allowable for tax purposes on Payment Basis    - - 

b) Unabsorbed Depreciation brought forward  for adjustment in future   30,360,163.53 33,213,102.00 

      30,360,163.53 33,213,102.00 

  Net Deferred Tax Liability    43,119,146.63 30,219,529.30 

  Tax Liability on DTL   8,791,347.21 9,337,834.55 

NOTE : 31 

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT: 

A. Defined Contribution Plans       

  The amount recognized as an expense for defined contribution plans are as under:       

  PARTICULARS   
FOR YEAR  ENDED 

31.03.2017 

FOR YEAR  

ENDED 31.03.2016 

  Provident Fund   54,512.00 50,686.00 

  Employee State Insurance   26,585.00 - 

B.  Defined Benefit Plan (Gratuity)       

  Valuation in respect of Gratuity has been carried out by independent actuary as at the Balance Sheet date. The details of the same are given as under: 

(i) Assumptions:       

(a) Discount Rate (Per Annum)   7.50%   

(b)  Rate of increase in compensation level   5.00%   

(c ) Rate of return on Plan Assets   -   

(d) Expected Average remaining working lives of employees in no. of years   24.80   

(ii) Changes in the present Value of Obligation:       

(a) Present value of the obligation at the beginning of the year    1,282,454.00   

(b)  Interest Cost   48,092.00   

(c ) Current Service Cost   103,378.00   

(d) Actuarial (Gain)/Loss   (381801.00)   

(e) Benefits Paid   -    

(f) Present value of the obligation at the end of the year    1,052,123.00   

(iii) Amount recognized as on 31/03/2017       

(a) Present Value of Obligation as at year end   1,052,123.00   

(b)  Fair value of Plan Assets as at year end   -   

(c ) Net (Asset)/Liability recognized   1,052,123.00   

(iv) Expenses recognized as on 31/03/2017   

  (a) Current Service Cost   103,378.00   

(b)  Interest Cost   48,092.00   

(c ) Net actuarial (Gain)/Loss   (381,801.00)   

(d) Gain for the year which has been accounted by the company in Profit & Loss Account    (230,331.00)   

  
Cumulative obligation for the Gratuity upto 31st March 2017 is Rs. 1052123/- . Company was not 
providing the liability till FY 2015-16 and the whole liability has been provided during the year.       

  

 

      

 

As per our separate report of even date     For & on behalf of the Board of Directors 

FOR SARASWAT & COMPANY      

Chartered Accountants       Ashok Kumar Agarwal  

FRN 004846C        Chairman Cum Managing Director   

          (DIN: 793152) 

              

CA Pravin Saraswat     Shiv Charan Maheshwari Priyanka Gattani  

Partner       Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary  

Membership Number:  072679 

Jaipur, Dated 27th May, 2017 
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